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Lifestyle China Group Limited (“Lifestyle China” or together with its ////
subsidiaries, the "Group”) is an established retail venue operator based ////

in the PRC. The Group operates two “Fashionable Lifestyle” department %,
stores under the Jiuguang brand in Shanghai and Suzhou respectively as ////
well as a commercial complex with a gross floor area of 350,000 square meters. ////
////
Targeting the mid-range to upper-end consumer market in China, the Group stands out ////
-

with its appealing product and brand portfolios and top-notch one-stop shopping
experiences. The Group is committed to optimising its product mix and enhancing its A
customer services by organizing promotion activities offering rich consumption scenarios with /,’/
an aim to satisfy the diverse needs of local consumers in terms of shopping, leisure and E
lifestyle.

S

In addition to operating its own retailing venues, the Group has been maintaining a strategic equity
interest in the Beiren Group, a leading retailing group based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, PRC.
The business activities of the Beiren Group cover department stores, supermarkets, electrical
appliances stores, gold and jewelry shops and outlet malls. The business performance of the Beiren
Group and the share of its results by the Group is significant to the Group.
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In 2023, with epidemic prevention and control measures lifted, social
activities resumed in China. The Central Government's continued
monetary easing policies further encourage investment and consumption.
The Chinese Mainland economy started to pick up and trend positive, with
the growth being more apparent in the first half year as suppressed
consumption desire rapidly being released, resulting in a substantial
growth in retail sales. However, the complex international environment and
weak mainland real estate sector added uncertainty to the country’s
economic outlook. As the recovery started to slow down in the second half
of the year, the full year economy saw a slow start, peaked mid-year then
plateaued the rest of the year.

Coping with a complex and ever-changing operating environment, the
Group actively mounted promotional programs and organized special
marketing activities, improved the shopping environment of its stores,
integrated online and offline retail businesses, raised service standard, and
also improved its product mix and membership reward systems to cater to
the changing demand of Chinese consumers post-pandemic. The Group
also strived to strengthen the competitive edges of the Jiuguang brand in
order to promote healthy development of its business and to consolidate
its position as a leading lifestyle retailer. During the year, Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, the Group's two established department
stores, and its Shanghai Jiuguang Center, prided business growth better
than their local peers.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's revenue amounted to
RMB1,349 million, 19.6% growth year-on-year. It also turned around from
loss to profit with profit attributable to owners of the Company reaching
RMBB87.8 million (2022: loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB24.4 million). Earnings per share were RMB0.06 (2022: loss per share of
RMBO0.017). The Board of Directors has resolved not to declare any
dividend for the year.

Looking ahead, despite the prevailingly weak international demand and
the challenging domestic macroeconomic environment, the Central
Government has designated 2024 as the “Year of Consumption
Promotion”, with an aim to accelerate consumer goods replacement in
order to stimulate consumption demand and invigorate the economy. It is
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expected that with the various policies taking effect, the Chinese economy
will be able to sustain the recovery momentum and consumer confidence
will gradually return, all being conducive to the growth of the retail market.

Alive to the growing consumer demand for comprehensive consumption
experience, the Group will continue to optimize the shopping environment
of its stores, add more experiential consumption contents, and organize
different promotional activities and themed exhibitions to create
immersive scenarios for customers, allowing them to gather and socialize,
to enjoy family time, and sports and fitness and cultural programs, while
shopping. Such initiatives will help encourage frequent customer
patronage.

To precisely understand consumers’ preferences, the Group will
strengthen the use of artificial intelligence (Al) analytic tools to facilitate
in-depth analysis of consumer behaviors, allowing it to timely adjust its
product mix and formulate better marketing activities to bolster customer
satisfaction and loyalty. The Group will also continue to improve its VIP
membership program with exclusive offers, members-only benefits and
other rewards to offer the best shopping experience to members.

In addition, the Group will give full play to the complementary advantages
of its physical stores and online business, use livestreaming, video clips
and other emerging social media to provide customers with convenient
online shopping experience, while also drawing them into the physical
stores.

By implementing precision marketing, constantly improving its product mix
and shopping environment, and tying its stores closes to lifestyles, the
Group expects to be able to fully realize the competitive advantages of the
Jiuguang brand, as well as deepen customer relations and maintain steady
business development. The Group is confident of the Jiuguang brand
maintaining its leadership position in the department store retail market in
Shanghai and the Yangtze River Delta region.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my gratitude to
the Group's management and employees for their efforts and
contribution, which are key to the Group's continuous growth. The Group
will continue to work hand-in-hand and move forward in firm strides with
employees, as well as to optimize operational capabilities to taking its
business to new heights. Finally, on behalf of the Group, | would also like
to thank our customers, business partners and shareholders for their
unwavering support.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
19 March 2024
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Market Review

With the three-year long COVID-19 pandemic finally behind us, China’s
economy in 2023 saw gradual recovery as, along with consumption
stimulate policy, the long-suppressed consumption desire was rapidly
being released and the recovery was particularly obvious in the first few
months of the year. As mainland consumers resumed outdoor activities
and rediscovered the joy of in-store shopping, retail sales saw significant
growth compared with the previous year. However, consumption
confidence was dampened by factors including weak international demand
that put pressure on China’s foreign trade export, continued downturn in
the real estate sector as well as youth unemployment problem, that caused
recovery of the retail sector to slow down since the middle of the year. The
country's total retail sales of consumer goods for the year increased by
7.2% year-on-year, with gold ornaments and jewelry, and apparel, footwear
and headwear posting stronger year-on-year growth of 13.3% and 12.9%
respectively.

Meanwhile, consumer preferences and expectations have seen changes
that they are no longer only focusing on the quality and prices of products
but the added emotional value of quality services and products they
bought that will increase their life experiences and enjoyment. In addition,
the year-long COVID-19 pandemic has prompted consumers to be health
conscious that demand for eco-friendly and health-related products has
increased. To capture this growing new trend, retailers are actively
developing sustainable initiatives with an aim to drive steady growth of the
consumption market. Marketing activities are focused to create immersive
experiences in order to encourage consumers to stay longer in the stores
and boosting their offline spending.
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Financial Review

Coping with the fiercely competitive business environment ridden with
weak consumption spending, the Group strived to seize opportunities in
the retail market by leveraging the strong brand equity of Jiuguang.
Through organizing unique marketing activities, optimizing the shopping
environment of its stores, product portfolio as well as its membership
reward program in order to boosting customers’ interest and
consumption, with an aim to provide a solid base to support sales growth.
In 2023, business of Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, the Group's
two well-established department stores, as well as the Shanghai Jiuguang
Center, outperformed their local peers.

Revenue and Sales Proceeds

In 2023, the Group's revenue increased by 19.6% year-on-year to
RMB1,349.0 million from RMB1,127.6 million in 2022. Total sales proceeds
rose by 25.2% year-on-year to RMB3,154.1 million from RMB2,520.2 million
in the previous year. The increase was mainly attributable to full
resumption of the Group's operations following lifting of all epidemic
prevention and control measures, as well as the Group's effective
operating initiatives and strategies. While sales in the first half of the year
increased by 50.7% year-on-year, the slowdown of the economy since
middle of the year prompted consumer sentiment to become more
cautious, sales growth in the second half of the year slowed to
approximately 5.8% year-on-year.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rate

During the year, the Group’s gross profit increased by 19.3% year-on-year
to RMB785.4 million from RMB658.1 million in the previous year. Gross
profit margin as a percentage of total sales proceeds decreased to 24.9%,
from 26.1% in 2022, and was 58.2% as compared to 58.4% in 2022 as a
percentage of revenue. Average concessionaire rate increased to 19.7%
during the year from 19.3% in the previous year.

Net Profit/Loss Attributable to Shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB87.8 million, while it was a
loss of RMB24.4 million in 2022.

The turnaround was primarily attributable to (i) the notable improvement in
sales performance after the Group's full resumption of business operation,
(i) the 68.9% year-on-year increase to RMB185.0 million of the Group's
share of profit in its associate Beiren Group, and (iii) the absence during
the year of rental and guaranteed sales commission concessions offered to
business partners. The Group would have recorded operating profit before
tax, and share of results of associates and a joint venture of RMB21.5
million for the year, as compared to RMB15.9 million operating loss in
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

Selling and Distribution Costs

In 2023, the Group's aggregate selling and distribution costs amounted to
RMB612.1 million, an increase of 5.9% from RMB577.8 million in the
previous year. The increase was primarily due to an increase in turnover
rent and related tax and staff and utilities costs during the year with the
Group's business operation returning to normal. The Group's aggregate
selling and distribution costs as a percentage of total sales proceeds
decreased to 19.4% for the year from 22.9% in 2022 as sales growth was
higher than the costs increases.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's general administrative expenses increased by 10.8%
year-on-year to RMB261.3 million from RMB235.9 million in 2022. The
increase was mainly due to the rise in staff costs after business operations
returned to normal during the year. Other general administrative expenses
remained stable.

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) for the year increased by
8.1% year-on-year to RMB208.4 million from RMB192.7 million in 2022,
mainly due to business operations returning to normal and the general
increment in salaries during the year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 1,172 full-time employees
(including executive directors), compared with 1,168 as at 31 December
2022.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses, which include management fees from
concessionaire counters/tenants, third-party payment platform charges
and other incomes, and sundry income and foreign exchange gains,
recorded a 5.0% decrease year-on-year to RMB217.6 million.
Notwithstanding an increase in third-party payment platform fees due to
sales increase and carpark income, the decrease in other income, gains
and losses this year was caused by a drop of government subsidies when
comparing to the same period last year.

Interest and Investment Income

During the year, the Group's interest and investment income saw a notable
surge of 182.3% year-on-year to RMB73.9 million, mainly attributable to an
increase in interest and investment income from bank deposits and
structured bank deposits. The increase in the cash balance was a result of a
net drawdown of bank loan of approximately RMB1,038 million as well as
increase in operating cashflow as sales grew.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs comprise mainly interest on bank borrowings
and lease liabilities. Total finance costs for the year amounted to
approximately RMB181.9 million (2022: RMB115.7 million), of which
RMB124.2 million (2022: RMB101.5 million) was bank loan interest and
RMB57.7 million (2022: RMB14.2 million) from lease liabilities. The increase
in bank interest expenses was due to full drawdown of the RMB3,300
million facility at the beginning of the year, while the higher finance
charges arising from lease liabilities was a result of the substantial increase
in lease liabilities following renewal of the lease for the Shanghai Jiuguang

property.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's adjusted EBITDA for the year increased by 9.6% to RMB434.3
million from RMB396.1 million in 2022, mainly due to increase in sales and
revenue after operations returned to normal.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's net debt (defined as cash and cash
equivalents, structured bank deposits and amounts due from associates
less total bank borrowings, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries and amount due to a joint venture) decreased to
approximately RMB405.4 million from approximately RMB560.6 million as
at 31 December 2022, thanks to the increase in cash from operations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
structured bank deposits amounted to approximately RMB2,823.6 million
(31 December 2022: RMB1,609.1 million), of which RMB40.1 million was in
Hong Kong dollars held in Hong Kong. The remaining cash balance was
held in the Chinese Mainland, of which approximately 3.3% was in United
States dollars and 96.7% was in Renminbi. The increase in cash and cash
equivalents, structured bank deposits was mainly due to: (i) increase in net
cash flow from operations after resumption of normal operations, and (i)
full drawdown of the RMB3,300 million new 15-year bank facility at the
beginning of the year for repayment of the project loan of RMB2,240
million, with the balance of approximately RMB1,060 million being
deposited in bank. The new bank facility was secured by the retail portion
(including the basement) of the Shanghai Jiuguang Center, with the
interest set at a few basis points below the Loan Prime Rate of the loan
market in China. As at the end of the year, the Group's debt to equity ratio
(defined as bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company) was 34.9%, up from 24.1% a year ago, due to increase in
bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries in the Chinese
Mainland is Renminbi, in which majority of the Group's transactions are
denominated. As described in the “Liquidity and Financial Resources”
section above, a small portion of the Group’s monetary assets are foreign
currencies (Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars).

Given that majority of the Group’s revenue and expenses, as well as
borrowings and capital expenditures are denominated in Renminbi, and
the Hong Kong dollar cash balance held in Hong Kong is used to settle
operating expenses incurred outside of the Chinese Mainland, the Group
currently does not require a comprehensive foreign currency hedging
policy. Nevertheless, the management will monitor the Group's foreign
currency exposure and, if necessary, will consider taking appropriate
measures to mitigate any significant potential foreign currency risk.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant and
equipment in China with book value of approximately RMB3,631 million
(31 December 2022: property, plant and equipment and investment
property in China of RMB3,786 million and RMB1,262 million respectively),
and (i) right-of-use assets in China with carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,569 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,620 million) were pledged to
secure bank facilities of RMB3,300 million (31 December 2022: RMB2,240
million).

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2023.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
During the year, the Group did not make any significant investment, nor
were there any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

As disclosed previously in 2022 Annual Report, the tenancy agreement
(dated 28 December 2022) which was entered into by the Group and
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level constituted a
very substantial acquisition and connected transaction of the Company.
The abovementioned transaction was approved by shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
20 March 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

Review of Operations

During the year, by leveraging its Jiuguang brand equity, the Group
continued to enrich its product portfolio, optimize the shopping
environment of its stores, enhance experiential consumption by organizing
themed marketing activities to meet the consumption needs of customers
and their desire in taking in-store photos to share their fun and experience.
Interaction with customers also helped arouse their curiosity and interest in
visiting our stores, which in turn will boost sales. At the same time, the
Group continued to strengthen its VIP loyal membership and activation
program that offers attentive and heart-warming value-added services to
attract members visiting the stores more often.

Shanghai Jiuguang Center ("JGC")

A distinctive commercial complex positioned as a leisure experience and
lifestyle hub in northern Shanghai, JGC launched during the year a series
of special marketing activities to attract customers to its shopping mall to
enjoy in-store shopping and meeting with relatives and friends. In March,
JGC ingeniously displayed, under the theme “Flowers e Jiuguang”,
thousands of pots of flowers on the terrace and the pedestrian street,
echoing with the Tulip Flower Expo taking place concurrently in the
Jing'an District which provided a hotspot for people in Shanghai to take
pictures and enjoy the booming blossoms. At the start of the summer
vacation, to provide families a place to relax and fully enjoy the summer
fun, JGC put up in its outdoor three-level atrium a water park, that comes
with giant water slides, leisure pools, rubber dinghies and water guns. In
late November, to mark its second anniversary, JGC unveiled a fairy town
themed "8 2 35", featuring large-scale elf decorations, parades, live
musicals and give free birthday cakes for customers. There was also an
outdoor real snow skating rink built for customers to enjoy figure skating
shows, as well as indulge in skating fun.

In 2023, JGC recorded sales proceeds of RMB310.2 million, a 34.1%
increase year-on-year. Average daily footfall grew by 16.0% year-on-year to
approximately 31,200 visitors, and the stay-and-buy ratio also increased by
9.4 percentage points to 75.3%. However, average ticket size dropped
slightly to RMB195 from RMB209 in the previous year.

During the year, JGC continued to work on the leasing of its office spaces
in its two office towers. Although the overall commercial property market
was near stagnant, about 60% of the leasable area of the East Tower was
taken up by tenants, generating rental income of approximately RMB25
million for the Group. Its tenants include foreign enterprises, state-owned
enterprises and local enterprises in industries such as logistics, professional
services, and e-commerce. Leasing of the West Tower began in the second
quarter of the year, approximately 5% of the leasable area have been
leased as at the end of the year. The Group will continue to actively
negotiate leases with potential tenants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

Shanghai Jiuguang

Shanghai Jiuguang continued to bring together fashion brands and marry
them with different cultural and charitable activities to strengthen its
trendsetter position in the city’s retail market. During the year, the store
continued to refresh its brand mix and brought in different new beauty,
apparel, gifts and healthcare technology brands, some being first store in
Shanghai or even in China, giving it an enriched product portfolio for
offering yet more choices to consumers. To celebrate the 26th anniversary
of Hong Kong rejoining the motherland, Shanghai Jiuguang organized a
choir, which is membered by children from Hong Kong and living in
Shanghai, to perform in the store. The concert was live-steamed to enable
viewers to feel the cheerful atmosphere. Moreover, leading the
sustainability and environmental protection trend, Shanghai Jiuguang
organized an environmental protection fair and co-organized an art
exhibition with environmental protection agencies to promote recycling
and carbon reduction, with an aim to encourage consumers to integrate
sustainable development concepts into their daily lives. It also organized
oil painting experiential classes and artist exhibitions, and to surprise
customers with unique privileges and leisure activities. These initiatives
had helped strengthen the loyalty of existing Jiuguang VIP members and
attracting new members that ultimately will foster the brand equity of
Shanghai Jiuguang.

In 2023, as a result of the average daily footfall surging 106.4% to 51,600
visitors from 25,000 visitors last year, the stay-and-buy ratio decreased by
20.4 percentage points to 37.0%. Average ticket price also dropped by
10.6% to RMB390. As such, total sales proceeds of the store for the year
rose 37.4% year-on-year to RMB1,937.2 million. Average concessionaire
rate remained at approximately 22.9%.

Suzhou Jiuguang

In 2023, as most Suzhou residents chose to travel outside of the city during
holidays, and became more cautious in spending from the middle of the
year, the retail market in Suzhou did not recover as well as expected. In the
fiercely competitive department store market, Suzhou Jiuguang upheld its
position as a prime destination for jewelry shoppers, offering products of
acclaimed jewelry and watch brands from around the world, and again
organized a grand jewelry exhibition with brand retailers in the store,
which helped increase customer traffic and sales and enhanced the brand
equity of Suzhou Jiuguang in the jewelry market.

In addition, to take care family customers in the neighborhood, Suzhou
Jiuguang set up a dedicated men’s clothing section with a variety of
themed activities such as the Coffee Art Festival coinciding with the World
Cup Tasters Championship — China Final event for customers to see top
baristas competing and also for them to visit the coffee-themed bazaar
and enjoy special coffees and delicatessens. The store also organized the
"Family Go Summer Carnival” where children could play dentists and learn
scientific knowledge, and children’s archaeological workshops and family
board game challenges, etc. that aimed to deepen engagement with
customers and boosting customer traffic and business of the store.

12

EBAK

PEAREBEER RS HEEESHNX
BRLAFEE - TEBEHEE LBTEMSLN
i B B EAL - FA - EIBARKEERN
NREEM - RE - BRARRER XSS HEp
TzLEhz2REE BREaEBEE R
HEERBENZTENERE - RENEEQERE
ZHRAF EBARTHERE LT EREMR
A IEEEEAES  BREKELETFAaRYE
Bif B LB -RA2EELBRRALR o A
LR - EEARERRERHERERRERS
e SHERIRREEN  SEEEE
EAHEEREIRMAREEE  SIFARFER
REOEE o EBANTREN M BRI K BITE
MREMESE - SBEEHIBREEEE MER
EE)  MERAEANEEGEMNEHE - AR
MBEKRASANRSHAENER - A LB
MmEEEE -

RIZB-=%F " LEASHBAOEREREFD
25,000 AR K i@ £ FH106.4% 251,600 A% - LAEL
ERBELEIRF T F204HEB D E37.0%
MERFEHERIHREIT T F10.6%EARE390
TC e EE - B2 JE F A8 B AT 1S SR AR R R R A0
JVA%REARMEN937.2A&E T - FHFFEEH
RIUEFFH22.9% -

BN

RZZ-_=F HMNERAZERATIMNIK
o MEFPRBBRRART  TEMEEED
DTS - EBRFANNBEETET - FMANLE
STHEBIRE BB EL  EESBEAMAIK
BESRE BEEANRETERBERAFEEN
REVKER - - FIRBHEMN O mEEREN
BOMEAE  BARRERHEERE -

Uboh - St BEIERER R BMAKRIL T B4
fREFER - URENLEMNEREE - flwn - &£
SATH RMYEAR R E A B @ 2R ZEAfE -
DNBEEITES - S| ERE ETELRMBER R - [
R EMIGEERET & - = AR R IR AN
NER o JEAHBE T Family GoB R FE
BHEERMENNTEERETS  UARNELTER
T tbERFaENREHRBES  REH
EEHNIBRIEAARKER

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2023



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

Suzhou Jiuguang's total sales proceeds recorded 3.8% year-on-year
increase to RMB879.7 million. Average daily footfall grew by 13.3%
year-on-year to approximately 13,600 visitors, with the stay-and-buy ratio
and average ticket price fell 8.3 percentage points and 9.7% year-on-year
to 55.5% and RMB464 respectively. The average concessionaire rate of the
store edged up 0.3 percentage point to 15.3% for the year.

Dalian and Shenyang Property

The Group’s commercial properties in Dalian and Shenyang remained
vacant during the year with a total cash outflow of approximately RMB19.1
million, mainly incurred for repair and maintenance of these properties.

Standalone “Freshmart” Operation

“Freshmart”, which sells high-quality food and pastries, is the Group's
standalone operation in a leased premise in Changning District, Shanghai.
During the year, Freshmart increased the proportion of counters under
concessionaire arrangement to provide customers with more food
collections. However, both its customer traffic and sales declined during
the year amid intense competition.

Investments in Associates

The Group holds a strategic stake in the Beiren Group, a leading retailing
group based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, the PRC. Benefiting from the
lifting of all epidemic prevention and control measures and the recovery in
the retail market, the overall retail sales of the Beiren Group grew by 9.3%
during the year. The best performing categories were household
appliances, jewelry and department store merchandises. Coupled with a
one-off gain from land disposal, Beiren Group's net profit attributable to
the Group for the year (net of attributable non-controlling interests)
increased by 68.9% to RMB185.0 million from RMB109.5 million in 2022.

Recall that the Group made Full Impairment for the Trade Receivable
balances due from the Debtors in 2019. With only a non-controlling
interest in Beiren Group, the Group can only rely on the management of
the Beiren Group to (i) take appropriate and necessary actions to collect
the receivables from the Debtors and/or the Guarantor, and (ii) obtain
up-to-date and relevant information, including but not limited to financial
information and the financial position, of the Debtors and the Guarantor
and progress of the legal proceedings, if any, against the Debtors and/or
the Guarantor.

During the year, the Group understood from management of the Beiren
Group that no progress has been made in recovering the outstanding
Trade Receivable balances nor were there any specific financial
information relating to the Debtors and the Guarantor available. Based on
the information currently available, the Group continued to believe full
impairment for the Trade Receivables in 2019 remains the best estimate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

Also, the Group continued to implement the Company'’s plan in response
to the auditor’s qualified opinion, as detailed in the Company’s
supplemental announcement dated 5 May 2020, by engaging with
management of the Beiren Group to obtain updates on the progress of
the legal actions taken against the Debtors and the criminal case against
the Guarantor. As at the date of this report, the Group has not been able
to obtain any updated information specific to this case as the key
employees of the Debtors or the Guarantor, and the Guarantor himself,
were still being detained by the relevant local authorities, and all assets,
records and information of the Debtors and/or Guarantor are still in the
custody of the local authorities in the PRC.

As the Group only holds a non-controlling interest in Beiren Group, the
Board understands the Group has to rely on management of the Beiren
Group to take necessary legal actions and contact relevant authorities
regularly to monitor the progress of this matter. The Board is aware of the
difficulties and challenges management of the Beiren Group is facing in
obtaining further up-to-date information.

In view of the above, despite the lack of progress in obtaining updated
information specific to this case in relation to the Debtors and/or
Guarantor, the Board considers the actions taken by the Group and
management of the Beiren Group to be the most appropriate under the
circumstances.

As also reiterated in the Company’s supplemental announcement dated
17 September 2021, while the Group will continue to work closely with
management of the Beiren Group to push for progress regarding the
litigation against the Debtors/Guarantor, management of the Company is
of the view that until the relevant local authorities had made meaningful
conclusion with the criminal case against the Guarantor, no progress could
be expected of the legal action taken by Beiren Group against the Debtors
to recover the Trade Receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) & % @ 5 3% & 5 #7 (&)

During the year, the Group sought independent legal advice from a PRC
lawyer on the Debtors’ and/or Guarantor’s ability to repay the Trade
Receivables. Although management of the Beiren Group has initiated civil
proceedings to recover the relevant debts, in accordance with the basic
legal principle of criminal case to precede civil case in the Chinese
Mainland’s judicial practice, civil and commercial cases filed will only be
heard based on the outcome of and after the relevant criminal cases are
closed. At present, there has been no conviction made in the criminal case
against the Guarantor, so there has been no progress with the related civil
cases against the Debtors. Moreover, in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the Chinese Mainland and legal precedents, any
property of the Guarantor involved in this case that has been seized,
detained, or frozen by the relevant authorities will be returned first to the
fundraising participants when the legal proceedings end. The PRC
People’s court shall continue to recover any outstanding portion or order
refunds, which will take priority over the civil debts owed to the Beiren
Group. A number of other public court cases similar to the Group's
criminal case against the Guarantor were finalised during 2023. Thus, it is
of the opinion of the independent legal advisor that the likelihood of
recoverability of any balance of Trade Receivables is very low. After
carefully assessing the situation again, the Group concluded that the Trade
Receivables had not been recoverable since 2019 when the Full
Impairment was first made and remained irrecoverable as at 31 December
2023.

The Group's management has communicated with the auditor regarding the
above situation and provided them the latest independent legal advice.
With the latest legal advice, the auditor concurred with the Group's
assessment that the Trade Receivables were not recoverable as at
31 December 2023, and therefore will not issue a qualified opinion on the
Group's consolidated financial position as at that date. However, as the
auditor is still unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
they considered necessary to assess management’s assessments in respect
of the recoverability of the Trade Receivables as at 1 January 2023, the
auditor will continue to qualify the Trade Receivables as at 1 January 2023
and the consequential impact of any adjustment to the opening balance of
the Trade Receivables to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2023. Furthermore, due to effect of the 2023 qualification above-mentioned,
the qualification will be remained for the comparability of the 2024 and 2023
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income for the year ending 31 December 2024.

The Board and the Audit Committee agreed with the auditor in giving a
qualified opinion on the opening balance of the Trade Receivables as at
1 January 2023 and the consequential impact to the Group's consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 [E 575 & 2 #(&)

Outlook and Plan

Amid a complex international environment and slowing global economic
growth situation, the Chinese economy is facing various challenges from a
feeble real estate sector and increasing pressure on foreign trade and
exports. As a result, consumption confidence suffered and consumers are
expected to turn more cautious in spending. Moreover, the growing
popularity of e-commerce has turned more and more consumers to shop
online that the brick-and-mortar retail sector is facing intense competition.
Against this backdrop, the Chinese Government has designated 2024 as
the “Year of Consumption Promotion” and plans to moderately increase
fiscal expenditures to stimulate consumption demand and zest up the
economy, with an aim to create positive atmosphere for social spending.

The Group is committed to nurturing and leveraging the Jiuguang brand
and to raising its overall competitiveness to strengthen its leadership
position in the department store retail industry in Shanghai and the
Yangtze River Delta. The Group will continue to closely monitor
consumption trends, optimize its product and service portfolios and strive
to build and deepen relationship and engagement with its customers.

The Group will make good use of big data analyses to understand the
preferences and buying habits of customers and help it implement precise
marketing strategies. A sales data dashboard system, which allows us to
understand the real-time sales data of every shop in the store and analyze
customer traffics and consumer preferences for providing appropriate
promotional messages and shopping privileges for members, as well as
identifying potential customers, improve conversion rate and strengthen
interaction with members to nurture customer loyalty.

The Group will also actively respond to environmental protection, sports
and entertainment, and physical and mental health topics that customers
care about. We will strive to integrate spiritual and cultural life elements
into different entertainment and consumption business scenarios. The
Group may increase investment in local and even nationwide public events
to attract active participation of customers and their endorsement of the
Jiuguang brand. During the Chinese New Year holiday in 2024, a 3D
mapping show was staged, with images of fireworks and the auspicious
dragon being projected on to the wall on the northern side of Shanghai
Jiuguang near Nanjing West Road. The show, together with the festive
images on the large outdoor screens and lighting installations on other
buildings in the Jing'an District, created a splendid Spring Festival
ambience and became a must-see spectacle for Shanghai residents and
tourists alike during the Chinese New Year holiday.
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The Group will continue to optimize its merchant and product portfolios,
introduce more healthcare equipment and health & wellness brands to
respond to increasingly health conscious consumers and plans to provide
more experiential and immersive consumption choices. Shanghai Jiuguang
Center has recently opened a cricket stadium, plus a skate park, a cinema,
entertainment and leisure facilities, among others. Meanwhile, Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang continued to organize different themed
events including art exhibitions and pet fairs to integrate the shopping
venues with lifestyles and to attract customers, old and new, to enjoy
different in-store experiences and shopping.

To create the ultimate shopping experience for members, the Group will
keep improving its VIP membership program with exclusive offers, special
member privileges and other rewards. We are also actively planning to use
artificial intelligence technology to analyze members’ buying habits and
preferences, so as to provide them with personalized product
recommendations and shopping advice that will enhance their shopping
satisfaction, and help bolster interaction with and the loyalty and bonding
of Jiuguang members.

The Group will continue to pay attention to consumption trends, leverage
the complementary advantages of its physical stores and online business,
use live streaming, video clips and other emerging social media means to
increase the visibility and reach of the Jiuguang brand. On top of
providing customers with convenient online shopping, we will also strive to
attract consumer patronage of its physical stores to realize growth of both
business streams.

The Group is also committed to cooperating with merchants to create top
of the class shopping environment for customers. We also actively look for
high-quality first store items to increase its exposure and create more sales
opportunities. When the products are successful as more consumers are
being drawn into the stores, both the merchants and the Group will
benefit, creating a win-win situation.

In addition, the Group will continue to step up effort to promote leasing of
the two office buildings of the Shanghai Jiuguang Center. The office
buildings are expected to generate stable cash flow for the Group in the
foreseeable future.

In conclusion, despite the many challenges, the outlook for the Chinese
economy will be stable and positive and that the retail market will continue
to improve. Armed with the well-endorsed Jiuguang brand and a
professional management team, the Group will focus on striving for highly
efficient and high-quality development. While ensuring steady business
growth, the Group will also look for investment opportunities with
promising potential to help it realize long-term growth and bring
sustainable returns to shareholders.
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Governance Overview
The Board is the highest governing body of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating the management objectives, strategies, priorities and goals of
the Group in relation to Environmental, Social and Governance aspects
and is also in charge of supervising their implementation.

The ESG Committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and senior members from various operating aspects and is responsible for
the formulation, implementation and daily governance of the overall ESG
strategies of the Group.

According to the overall ESG strategies of the Group, members of the ESG
Committee are responsible for the specific formulation and
implementation of the relevant ESG objectives in relation to various
operating aspects as well as the collecting and reporting of the relevant
information. It is also the responsibility of the members to submit the
relevant performance and annual reports in relation to the environmental,
social and governance issues to the Board on a regular basis. They also
endeavour to constantly improve the reporting mechanism in relation to
the environmental, social and governance issues, which will allow the
Board to be fully aware of the initiatives in relation to the environmental,
social and governance issues of various operating aspects of the Group
and their subsequent implementation and follow-up progress, as well as
the relevant governance system and measures in relation to the potential
risks of the environmental, social and governance issues of the Group.

To implement strategies in relation to the environmental, social and
governance issues more effectively and monitor the relevant possible
environmental, social and governance-related risks, the ESG Committee
will hold regular or irregular meetings depending on the situation to
investigate, formulate and adjust the relevant strategies. Regular meetings
will be held with sub-units under the ESG Committee to follow up on the
implementation of environmental, social and governance targets on the
relevant policies and standards in relation to various operating aspects of
the Group. Meanwhile, the ESG Committee will also collaborate with the
relevant departments such as the legal and audit departments timely to
assess the risks, to which the Group may be exposed and formulate
corresponding responsive and control measures.

18

E/nwﬁ.
RAKBENEREAEE BENEAE

@Z—Ei;%t% CHEREBRTENEERTEH - R
BRRER FTEEREBENT-

ESGERZEEMAKEEFHNITE RRETR
@Mﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ RBHEK - BEAEEESG
ERRBENGE BERAEES -

RIBAREBESGEEHE  ESCERZBEEHK
BAETREL T ENEMESGHZM AR
E Bt RERERNRERES  TEEE
HREEERIEMRE  HeRERHTEAE
BREMERFERS XHORTEHTEBHER
B gREBRTENERES  TEFIEE
EAEARETREZTEMRE - g RER
HEOERREERBERR  LABAEE
HRERE e RERAT AN RERRNERE
REEHI LI IE -

ABEBINERRE g RER EEE’J&XHR&
EERE HEREARAFEMERBTER
ESGERZES MR THEMR i%ﬁi,ﬁ;ﬁii$7£,ﬁﬂ
AR - e R ARB KR - WHESG
ERZEETBzoIMEBETTHERE  UR
HEIRE  HERERHEMNEEEALETRE
& 77 E AR BUR RIZER AT o R - ESGEYR
ZEEMEEREEE - B SAEEIBPIBIE
AT AR BEARR S E AT a8 R 2 B - W
TEFE R FE S R B 1R o

B
itestylelchinalGrouplimited WANUARepOr2023




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &

Being the final stage of implementing strategies in relation to
environmental, social and governance issues, the ESG Committee will
continuously acquaint itself with the trends and changes of development in
relation to the environmental, social and governance issues, striving to
promote effective incorporation of the strategies in relation to the
environmental, social and governance issues of the Group into the
corporate’s daily decision making and business operation. It is the belief of
the Group that under the full collaboration of various operating levels, the
efforts made by the Group will strenuously ensure the Group has a high
level of corporate responsibility standard in relation to environmental,
social and governance issues.

Reporting Scope

The Board of Directors considers that the business of Lifestyle China
Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Group”) is closely linked to
the environment and society in various aspects, and we will endeavour to
disclose and report matters we believe that are relevant and important to
the Group's mission as much as possible.

Business Philosophy

As a premier department store retail operator, we regard integrity as our
core value and we believe that the Group's presence and prosperity are
interdependent and interconnected with the society and we adhere to the
following philosophies in conducting our business:

1. Customers: our mission is to create one-stop department

stores and shopping locations so that our customers can enjoy
pleasant shopping experiences.

2. Employees: our employees are our precious assets and we treat
them with fairness and respect and maintain a working
environment to unleash their full potential.

3. Business partners: we do business with our partners with
integrity and fairness and in a responsible manner. At the same
time, we encourage our business partners to embrace high
standards of corporate responsibility similar to those of ours.

4. Community: we are dedicated to unremittingly contributing
and serving the communities in which our business is
operated.

5. Shareholders: we endeavour to create sustainable returns for

our shareholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

Environment

Emissions

While creating social and economic value with an aim to minimising the
impact of our business on the environment, the Group dedicates our
efforts to establishing sustainable development and acting as a
responsible corporation in discharging our social responsibilities. To
achieve these objectives, we strive to take appropriate measures to ensure
that correct decisions and executions are made at all levels of our
operations.
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To contribute to environmentally sustainable development, the Group is committed to:

AEEBBRNNATITHHERAREAVFEEERBOER

1. eradicating resources wasting misconduct

2. minimising the use of scarce resources and energy

3. adopting the most effective environmentally friendly operating
solutions

4. endeavouring to promote environmental protection awareness

5. setting sustainable and measurable environmental protection
targets
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The primary sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group include
electricity, water and natural gas consumption. Hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes mainly come from sewage, kitchen waste,
construction and household wastes. The Group focuses on measuring and
reporting carbon reduction results and promoting waste reduction at
source. In this connection, the Group strictly complies with relevant
legislative requirements on sewage and waste disposal, and engages
government-approved professional firms to carry out recycling treatment,
so as to implement effective environmental management system
standards. Regular inspections of the Group's operations are conducted by
relevant government environmental protection authorities. Annual
government inspection on all relevant sewage and waste disposal for the
financial year 2023 was passed, which complied with government
standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 + 1 &k &R E (&)

KPI'A1.1: There are 7 main types of emissions including air pollutants,
kitchen waste, slop oil, household waste, domestic wastewater,
construction waste, sewage well and grease trap wastes. The total
emission and corresponding intensity in the financial year 2023 were
725,916.74 tons and 1.11 ton/sg.m. respectively.

KPI'A1.2: The total greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide and
corresponding intensity for the financial year 2023 were 84,518.03 tons and
0.13 ton/sg.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas emission of carbon
dioxide from direct energy and corresponding intensity were 1,110.45 tons
and 0.0017 ton/sqg.m. respectively. The greenhouse gas emission of carbon
dioxide from indirect energy and corresponding intensity were 83,407.58
tons and 0.13 ton/sq.m. respectively.

KPI A1.3: The total hazardous waste produced and corresponding intensity
in the financial year 2023 were 987.36 tons and 1.51 kg/sg.m. respectively.

KPI'A1.4: The total non-hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2023 were 724,929.38 tons and 1.11 ton/sg.m.
respectively.

KPI A1.5: The Group's targets and measures to mitigate emissions for the
financial year 2023 are set out below.
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We strive to constantly improve energy use efficiency and minimise
carbon emissions to the surrounding area during the construction
processes of environmentally friendly projects.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

non-hazardous wastes
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—  We set up a sewage treatment system for handling sewage in
compliance with the government’s “Pollutant discharge standard for
urban sewage treatment plant”.

—  Waste prevention and management play an indispensable role in the
Group's overall environmental policy. Accordingly, the Group has
set up an effective waste management approach to ensure that the
collection and treatment of waste were carried out in compliance
with relevant government regulations and would cause the least
impact on the surrounding environment. The Group will strictly
follow the relevant government requirements and enter into
disposal agreements with government-approved professional firms
with relevant expertise to carry out separation, recycling and
removal of waste.
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We endeavour to use environmentally friendly products and services =Y = \ ’
for our decoration and renovation projects to minimise the creation S T@EP - &K %R
of hazardous substances. For instance, we would request our ' 3
contractors to use environmentally friendly and energy-saving ERIR =5
products that are approved by relevant government authorities, HRMEBRE - i
especially materials such as adhesives, paints, coatings, etc., which & \ ¢
must be low VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) compliant.
KPI A1.6: For the handling of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, the BRI IEIR A1.6 B LRSS
Group's targets and measures to reduce waste for the financial year 2023 & MHEF VIR RIERE 3
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &

—  Kitchen waste mainly comes from catering tenants. The Group
provides necessary guidance to the catering tenants and employees
to reduce unnecessary food waste in production and consumption.
At the same time, the Group has procedures in place for the
collection and treatment of kitchen waste which are strictly in
accordance with the principles and requirements as set by the
government. As opposed to dumpling, landfilling or selling kitchen
waste illegally, we will enter into disposal agreements with the
municipal city government departments or designated professional
firms with relevant expertise to carry out collection and disposal of
kitchen waste.

—  To improve the efficiency of the piping and drainage systems, the
Group carried out transformation and optimisation works on the
sewage pump system of the water collection wells.

In 2023, thorough dredging and cleaning were conducted for all
sewage pipes and sewage treatment equipment at our Shanghai
store to improve the efficiency of the drainage system. Meanwhile,
in 2023, our Suzhou store has strengthened the daily inspection of
sewage pipes to eliminate the relevant safety hazards and maintain
the normal operation of on-site facilities and equipment, and ensure
smooth drainage of water sources.

* 2030 Target is revised

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to minimising the overall energy consumption in
our daily operations. Through scientific management and implementing
appropriate controls in every part of our operations, we strive to maximise
energy efficiency and eliminate the wastage of electricity, gas fuel and
water resources.

Ty,

KPI A2.1: The Group's direct and/or indirect energy consumptions by type
for the financial year 2023 were 105,535,650 kWh of electricity; 513,584
cubic meters of natural gas consumption, and 3,506.8 tons of steam energy
consumption. Accordingly, their energy consumption intensities were
161.56 kWh/sq.m., 0.79 cubic metre/sq.m. and 0.01 ton/sqg.m. respectively.

FEREEERRLE =

R NTHAT

*

EFNREEXRARNERBES - AEEY
BELEMEFPETLENETS 1L
EHRBIESIELEENHBERED o R
7R 6% [ B A 4 PR U BE 22 B T B 3% A IR )
BAROIHIE RAITERKSE  BEERL
FEREEERATE BeRMRREEE
FIEE AR RBYE  BEEFR
MEXABRBRBEDKREE - M
EBTTREEMAR  HIERRELIDEEA

BRFEEMPKRGHRE  AEEHE
KHKE SRR T80 - B -

2023F EBIEH BB EBHESERBLS
IKERIRRR BT T HUR BB RE 28 - FEIA
RBABIKRFEZE - B 8N E TR
2023F AT HESEBER T KR - Pk
THEZ2RE  RERSREEHBES
BT BEIMREKR KBS -

T=TFEEEEE

BIREMA

ERE IS  REERONEERERNHE
FBBNEEE  SBRBITESERE &
REWBRTHRERRE - BRBEE - MEKK
BERRRE

'H'IIIIIIIIIIII/H\\\

4

iz,

o -
= 2

'
i

RABHEMIER A2.1 : 2023 N AR BIIR AR
BomBERR /SRELREEERENLRE
£105,535650 T R/ - RRRERRE
513,584 77K ~ ZRELFEARE3,506.8M8 © FILE -

BERBRERED A RE T K161.56 T R -
0.7932 75 K ]2 0.01M8 o

JN Bl | |




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

and drainage systems, ELV systems and IT facilities within the Group’s ~ Z#t -
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2030 Target (compare to 2023 level)
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KPI A2.2: The total water consumption and corresponding intensity for the — BASRAEIEIE A2.2 1 20238 B F [E B FE7K 2 2 4
financial year 2023 were 867,845 tons and 1.33 tons/sq.m. respectively. FEZ [Z 9 Rl /3867,845M8 K B 7 75 K 1.33M o

KPI A2.3: Electricity is mainly consumed by air conditioning systems, vertical ~ BBSREEUIEIZ A2.3 : fERNSEEW RS, KIER -
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—  Consideration of energy saving and environmental friendliness of ~ —
equipment is an important evaluation criterion in outsourcing and
procuring new equipment for the Group. Priority has been given to
those energy-saving and environmentally friendly products in our
general procurement of lighting and power equipment. Meanwhile,
energy-saving and environmentally friendly related requirements are
also applied to the entire tendering process.

3 In 2023, the power equipment of our Shanghai store and Suzhou
store was set to operate based on actual needs to better reduce
energy consumption.

—  To substantially reduce power energy consumption, the Group is  —
gradually adopting long-life and lower power consumption LED
lighting in shops and office areas to reduce power consumption.

/ In 2023, JGC, Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang stores
continued to facilitate the adoption of LED lighting as lighting
-_-,d' sources for the tenants’ renovations. These stores have adopted
measures such as reasonable control of lighting in public areas and
—) comprehensive examination of tenants’ electricity consumption
according to the regulations on energy conservation management
to monitor the electricity current control, electricity level
pre-warning and reduce electricity consumption in real-time in the
—— public areas of the shopping mall and tenants.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 815 + 1 &k &R E (&)

—  As the Group strives to implement low carbon and environmentally
friendly practices, excellent performance has been achieved in
energy saving and emission reduction.

Shanghai Jiuguang completed the renovation of 4 freight elevators
in June 2023, as well as the replacements of AHU8-1
air-conditioning main box, AHU5-7 surface cooler and F309-310
area fan coil in July 2023. By using new equipment with lower energy
consumption to replace old equipment with high energy
consumption, we achieved the goals of conserving energy and
reducing emissions.

JGC and Suzhou Jiuguang stores strengthened the management of
major energy-consumption equipment in 2023. By adopting
segmented time-on-demand control, we minimised energy wastage
while meeting operational demand.

KPI A2.4: Water consumption mainly comes from sanitary facilities for our
customers and staff as well as the water-cooled air conditioning systems.
The Group's targets and measures in respect of the enhancement of water
efficiency for the financial year 2023 are set out below:
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—  To improve water consumption efficiency and prevent wastage of
water resources, our JGC, Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang
continued to strengthen the inspection and maintenance of water
valves, water-saving devices, faucets and sewer pipes in the toilets of
the building to reduce or control water leakage, so as to prevent
water wastage and enhance the efficiency of water consumption.

KPI A2.5: The disclosure on the total packaging material used for finished
products is not applicable to the Group's operations due to our business
nature.

* 2030 Target is revised
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Environment and Natural Resources

The Group supports environmental protection and carries on the greening
of our operating environment. The Group also constantly assesses its
measures taken to minimise the impact of our business operation on the
surrounding environment so that appropriate improvement actions can be
taken promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lighting and environmentally friendly papers, paper usage reduction,
turning off idle lighting, computers and electrical appliances and other
facilities and equipment to save energy. The Group is also committed to
promoting the use of recycled papers and shopping bags made of
recycled papers in our stores, where feasible.

KPI' A3.1: Appropriate actions are taken to manage the impacts of the
Group's operations on the environment and natural resources. We actively
promote environmental protection, formulate a number of policies and
measures to optimise the operation and office environment, strengthen
energy conservation and emission reduction management and emphasize
green operation and green office. Relevant policies and measures taken
for the financial year 2023 were as follows:

—  Implementing the Office Automation Application System. In 2023,
the Group further upgraded electronic office automation systems to
optimise office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office papers and facilitate the Group's paperless office
operation.

—  Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and recycling toner
cartridges, paper, envelopes and paper files. In 2023, the Group
continued to facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our
stores based on its actual needs. At the same time, printing facilities
are reasonably adjusted to reduce the consumption of consumables.
We adopt a centralised collection and disposal approach to handle
the centralised collection and disposal of used consumables to
avoid environmental pollution resulting from improper waste
disposal.

—  Purchasing and using recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. To advocate environmentally responsible
shopping, the Group provides customers with paper bags produced
with recycled paper and printed with the environmentally friendly
recycling label, reminding the customers that paper bags can be
recycled. We take appropriate measures to strictly comply with the
"General Technical Requirements of the Environmental Protection,
Safety and Labelling for Plastic Shopping Bags” and “Notice on
Restrictions of Manufacturing and the Sale of Plastic Bags” issued by
the country. Reduction in plastic bag consumption was achieved by
charging customers for non-woven bags, and providing plastic bags
only when necessary.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &

—  Encouraging the use of environmentally friendly materials and
energy-efficient equipment in our construction projects. In respect
of the renovation and design of our office and stores, the Group
actively adds an environmental-friendly philosophy to adopt an
open atrium design to maximise the use of natural light and share
lighting in common areas and retain or refinish the existing furniture
where possible during renovations to reasonably make use of the
existing resources.

The Group aims to achieve a harmonious development of people,
buildings and the natural environment. While utilising natural resources
and handmade means to create a good and healthy living and entertaining
environment, we aim at controlling and minimising the use and destruction
of the natural environment.

Climate Change

Climate change has become a global focus and a major issue. Extreme
weather events caused by climate change are also becoming more and
more serious, bringing significant risks and impacts to the global economy.
The Group has always been recognising the impact of climate change and
has taken various measures to assess and reduce risks. The Group has
identified different physical risks that may pose a threat to its operations
and its financial performance, including various extreme weather
conditions and disasters (including droughts, floods, severe typhoons,
unusually persistent heat waves, epidemics, etc.) caused by climate
change. In addition, the Group also recognised the corresponding
transition risks caused by climate change, including the increase in
attention to climate-related issues, changes in consumer preferences and
changes in investors’ expectations and views to the Group, which may
result in the potential increase in operation, compliance and other costs.

Therefore, the Group will review the latest policies and regulations related
to climate change in the regions where it operates in a timely manner, and
identify potential climate-related risks that affect its operation activities
and long-term sustainable development. At the same time, the Group also
communicates with investors to understand their climate-related

expectations and concerns.
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KPI A4.1: To deal with climate-related risks, ensure the safety of employees
and on-site personnel, and reduce the adverse effects of various extreme
weather conditions and disasters on operations and long-term sustainable
development, the Group has formulated relevant counter-measures and
plans as internal guidelines for its work procedures, so as to issue safety
warnings and make special work arrangements when such situations occur.
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At the same time, the Group also pays close attention to and understands
the relevant requirements and regulations on addressing climate change
where it operates, continuously reviews and improves relevant work
arrangements and guidelines, and conducts relevant special drills on a
regular basis every year to enhance employees’ awareness of protection
and response, ensure the safety of employees and on-site personnel, and
reduce property losses.

Moreover, the Group has also established emission reduction targets and
corresponding measures that help reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
thereby contributing to the sustainability of the global ecosystem.

Social

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

As an employer embracing equal opportunities, the Group's employment
policy aims to provide a working environment where there is no
discrimination on the basis of race, gender, religion, age, etc., and
establish a sound and quality work environment to attract talents. All
applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fairness.

To attract and retain outstanding talents, the Group has a comprehensive
performance appraisal management regime and regularly communicates
with employees to ensure its system’s transparency and fairness. Through
the assessment of employees’ job performance, we employ and promote
employees who share common values and professional ethics, and praise
those who are self-motivated, responsible and honest to ensure the
continued improvement of the Group's business.

Employees’ remuneration package is reviewed regularly by the Group. The
evaluation makes reference to the labour market and the level of salaries
and benefits in the same industry and takes into account employees’
performance and working experience to ensure that competitive
remuneration packages are being offered to motivate their continuous
improvement and contribution to the Group. In terms of employee
dismissal policy, the Group follows the local regulations as stipulated by
the government.

The policy on working hours, rest days, other benefits and welfare of the
Group is in line with the requirements of the local government and
industry practices. In addition to paid annual leave, we also offer
employees other types of leaves, including sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and care leave.
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Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiatives to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We work with labour unions to organise a
wide range of leisure and cultural activities to express our care to our
employees and promote healthy lifestyles and strengthen their sense of
belonging and togetherness to the Group.

In the financial year 2023, there were no serious breaches of applicable
legislation and/or regulations.

KPI B1.1: As of 31 December 2023, we had 1,169 employees (excluding
executive directors) with 1,166 stationed in the Chinese Mainland and 3 in
Hong Kong.

Number of employees (excluding executive directors) by gender, type of
employment and age group at the end of the year 2023 is shown in the
following charts:
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KPI B1.2: In the financial year 2023, the employee turnover rate of the  BARENIEIZB1.2 : H20230 BREFE - A& E &
Group (excluding executive directors) was 1.23%. EMALE(TBRIENITESE) £1.23% -
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Health and Safety

The Group always strives to provide and maintain a safe and healthy
environment in its property portfolio for all the customers, employees, and
business partners. Therefore, the Group provides comprehensive
insurance coverage including work injury and employer liability, as well as
annual health checks to its employees. We conduct regular inspections of
premises and provide training and education to our employees on disaster
prevention, fire drills, and occupational safety, as well as first aid training to
enhance employees’ knowledge and skills to prevent accidents.

KPI B2.1: There were no work-related fatality incidents reported in the past
three years, including the financial year 2023.

KPI B2.2: In the financial year 2023, the number of loss of working days due
to work injuries was 156 days, accounting for 0.05% of normal working
days.

KPI B2.3: Occupational health and safety measures, and related
implementation and monitoring methods:

—  Maintaining proper lighting and ventilation systems and a tidy
environment in office and retail venues, and providing sufficient
working space in the offices.

—  Smoking is prohibited in office and retail venues.

—  Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, the Group requires its employees to share the
responsibility in the setting, execution and monitoring of policies in
respect of safety and health. Their responsibilities include:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &

— lIdentifying, reporting and avoiding hazards at the workplace in
relation to health and safety and having the responsibility to report
such hazards immediately to superiors or the security department.

—  Participating in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
prevent them from happening or re-occurrence.

—  Working together with the Company in adopting work safety
methods and procedures.

Development and Training

The Group firmly regards employees as valuable assets and their
development helps facilitate the growth of the Group. In pursuing our
business objectives and providing protection for the general rights and
interests of our employees, the Group puts in place a suitable platform
that supports the Group and employee development and training through
performance evaluation, two-way communications and questionnaires on
training needs. The employee development and training policies adopted
by the Group include:

—  Providing newly-joined staff with comprehensive orientation
programmes to assist them in familiarising themselves with the
Group.

—  Providing employees with regular and ad-hoc internal job-related
training and development workshops.
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—  Actively seeking external training resources. In 2023, we cooperated =~ —
with professional training institutions and launched various types of
training including but not limited to supervisory level development
training, middle and senior management training. Management
knowledge and professional skills covering management skills and
teamwork are taught by professional lecturers.

—  Post-training evaluations are conducted to assess the effectiveness ~ —
of these training programmes.

SRR R T TR TR TR L TRy,

@

LU,

S | e e .!": :
N e T

-'\-\. | 3

BRI BT IR - 2023F EE KT
JIRBEIE ARTEEBTRREER
BRI TREEREARBIIEZER
REEHES) - B X BABXE IR A
MBEEI - BIARBREEEREE
BaEErm -

9 1T SR AT A A TR AL <

L Y it 1 ! !,i_t-"*i”m_

IIIIIIIIIIIIIII‘IIIIIIIII,IIIIIII THHTH

Report|2023




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) 215 + # &R ERHRE ()

KPI B3.1: Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

category (excluding executive directors).
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KPI B3.2: Average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee category (excluding executive directors).
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to strictly complying with the relevant local labour
and employment laws and regulations, and ensuring that employment
contracts entered into with employees are on a legal, fair, equal, voluntary,
mutually agreed and good faith basis. The Group adopts employment
policies and procedures that prohibit forced labour and child labour. The
same requirements also apply to the Group’s concessionaires and tenants.

KPI B4.1: The Group strives to perform continuous reviews and
improvements on the recruitment practices to prevent child labour and
forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

—  Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/or employ any
persons who are below 16 years old for any reason. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the age of
the applicants during recruitment to ensure that no minors under
the age of 16 are employed.

—  All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not allow
forced labour, or use any form of deception to induce employees to
join the Group.

KPI B4.2: We are not aware of any child or forced labour incidents in the
financial year 2023. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any risk of
having child or forced labour in our business operation. We are committed
to taking immediate measures to eliminate any non-compliance in respect
of child and forced labour.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

In accordance with our operating practices and the composition of
different segments along our supply chain management model, our stores
sell direct purchased merchandises and offer branded merchandises and
services through concessionaire and leasing arrangements. Through
seamless cooperation with suppliers and business partners, and highly
efficient information technology networks, the Group is able to work
smoothly along the supply chain which optimises the resources allocation
to deliver high-quality products and services to our customers. The Group
strives to share our commitments and beliefs in environmental and social
aspects with our business partners. This also encourages our business
partners to pay attention to and control environmental and social risks that
may be related to supply chain management and embrace high standards
of corporate responsibilities that are similar to ours.
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The supply chain management policy adopted within the Group is set out
below:

—  To cooperate in a fair, honest and responsible manner with suppliers
who share our business philosophy.

—  Suppliers are contractually prohibited from recruiting child labour.

—  Suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that the products they
offer are non-toxic and meet the relevant government and industry
requirements and standards.

KPI B5.1: As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 1,936 suppliers in the
Chinese Mainland, including 1,516 suppliers for Shanghai stores and 420
suppliers for Suzhou stores.

KPI B5.2: Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers.

— In engaging suppliers, they are required to meet the Group's
product requirements, such as price, quantity and delivery time.

— In engaging suppliers, it is based on a set of standards, including
quality control and compliance with relevant the Chinese Mainland
and/or international standards.

—  Renewal of supplier contracts is subject to a review of their
performance based on the practice and their achievements.

KPI B5.3: Practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

—  Suppliers are responsible for product management in the sales area,
ensuring that the products provided are of good quality, and shall
not provide inferior commodities, and all processes in their supply
chain shall comply with the practices of environmental protection
and social risk reduction. The Group has the right to conduct
random inspections on the quality of products provided by the
suppliers.
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KPI B5.4: Practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

—  Suppliers are required to abide by the “Store Decoration Design
Guidelines”, "Interior Decoration Code” and other specifications
formulated by the Group. After completing the decoration project, it
should be inspected by the relevant departments of the Group's
member companies to ensure that the decoration conforms to the
practices and requirements of environmental protection and
services. In the event of non-compliance, the suppliers are required
to rectify immediately.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that our corporate sustainability and reputation are
built on our high-quality products and services. Our operation team is
committed to providing safe and high-quality products and services to our
customers and addressing customer complaints with utmost attention.

At the same time, the Group believes that product safety is the key to our
success. We strictly follow the industry standards and government
regulations relevant to our products and services. We provide training to
employees to enhance their consciousness of product safety to prevent
any counterfeits and sub-standard merchandise being sold at our stores
and to protect the rights and interests of our consumers.

The product safety policies adopted by the Group are as follows:

—  For non-food products, the Group enhanced the quality checks on
products provided by our suppliers and business partners to ensure
that these products meet the relevant safety standards and
requirements. Based on the characteristics of the product, special
attention is placed on compliance with those regulations and
requirements related to baby and children products, toys and
customer safety and execution to ensure that our products sold have
fully complied with the relevant mandatory regulations and
requirements in the PRC.

—  For food products, the Group assumes the primary responsibility for
food safety in accordance with the relevant provisions of the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC". We also set and implement policies and
procedures such as “Purchase inspection and recording policy”,
"Food selling procedure management”, “Procedures regarding
removal of substandard food items from shelves”, and “policy and
procedures relating to reporting and handling of emergency food
safety incident” to ensure all food items provided are safe.
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KPI B6.1: During the year, no products were recalled by the Group due to
significant safety and health reasons.

KPI B6.2: Our customer services extended to before, during and after the
sales. All complaints are handled by professional personnel of the Group’s
customer service department. Details of the complaints, progress status,
handling time and settlement are properly recorded and supervised. There
were 329 complaints in respect to products and services received by the
Group in the financial year 2023, which were consistent with the industry
norm.

KPI B6.3: Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group recognises that brand equity is critical to our success. We
actively allocate resources to maintain and protect the intellectual property
rights of our brands.

—  We value intellectual property rights and determine intellectual
property rights as an indispensable element of successful business.

—  We manage and protect our intellectual property rights through
registration and maintenance and enforcement measures.

—  We respect the intellectual property rights of others and do not
infringe on their intellectual property rights.

—  Suppliers who have business dealings with the Group are required to
ensure that they will not display, sell, use and store any items that
infringe the intellectual property rights of others at designed sales
areas or counters and also undertake not to engage in other related
illegal acts at designed sales areas or retail areas.

KPI B6.4: Once products are found to be of significant quality problems,
the Group will initiate an action plan to trace the product batch to ensure
high product quality and service standards.

KPI B6.5: Consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

To protect the relevant information and privacy of consumers, the personal
information that consumers fill out in the “Membership Application Form”

when applying for a membership card is entered into the membership
system of the Group by specialised personnel and is archived
confidentially and centrally managed. Our employees are not allowed to
access member information without authorisation.
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Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve transparency, integrity and accountability in
our operations and requires our employees to maintain high standards on
ethics, and personal and professional conduct to maintain and promote
the Group's reputation. In addition to these codes of conduct for
employees, the Group has put in place an interest declaration and
whistleblowing mechanism, which we share with our Directors, colleagues
and business partners to minimise and mitigate any situations that may
lead to the occurrence of conflict of interests or corruptions. At the same
time, the Group considers integrity as our core value and encourages our
employees to report any improper, misconduct or fraudulent conduct. The
anti-corruption policy of the Group is set out in the Employees’ Handbook
and the "Letter of Undertaking by Supplier in respect of Anti-Commercial
Bribery”.

KPI B7.1: In the financial year 2023, there were no companies within the
Group or any of their employees during the employment term were
prosecuted for corruption.

KPI'B7.2:

The Group requires employees to confirm and sign the “Declaration and
Commitment of Honesty and Integrity” when they are employed and
requires relevant suppliers and outsourcing processors that have business
dealings with the Group to confirm and sign the “Anti-Commercial Bribery
Commitment” before conducting formal transactions and comply with the
relevant anti-corruption commitments and requirements set out in the
employee handbook and commitment letter.

Any employee can report to the relevant departments of the Group
companies directly or through any managerial staff if corruption is
identified or suspected. The whistleblower may also request that his/her
identity be kept confidential. We will protect the whistleblower from any
form of retaliation to the extent practicable unless the whistleblower
himself/herself has violated the regulations or acts maliciously.

KPI'B7.3:

The Group's member companies are required to provide Directors and
employees with the above anti-corruption training and reiterate the above
anti-corruption requirements on a regular or irregular basis as the case
may be.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &

Community Investment

The Group adheres to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participates in community and social services to promote
corporate social responsibilities and make contributions to the society. In
this regard, we actively invest in the community, especially in those less
privileged groups as well as the young generation concerning education,
growth and development. Through engaging and interacting with the
community, the Group aims to:

—  Support less privileged groups and bring them love and hope;

—  Encourage employees to be compassionate and sympathetic;

—  Strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the society; and
—  Provide education to help them achieve a better future.

KPI B8.1: The Group contributes its time and resources to the community
in the following areas:

—  Supporting and interacting with the community (such as the less
privileged groups and people with disabilities); and

— Education.
KPI B8.2: The related initiative in each area includes:

—  For education support, the activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2023 were as follows,

In August 2023, our Shanghai store participated in Charity Month —
City Exchange Little Ambassador Charity Painting Exhibition to
support the Shanghai Charity Education and Training Center with
actions and financial aid. The store has made cash donation to help
the children and teenagers in need for 8 consecutive years, which
cared for their growth and success, whilst contributing to public
welfare and charity.
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In August 2023, our Suzhou store continued to participate in the
Charity Education Support Programme of Suzhou Industrial Park
Charity Federation and continued to support students from less
privileged families in Suzhou Industrial Park, thereby students from
less privileged families would not be denied the opportunities to
learn and acquire knowledge due to the poverty.

In terms of social care, activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2023 were as follows,

In January 2023, our Shanghai store continued to participate in the
“Love under Blue Sky —Charity Sale by Thousands of Shop” event
hosted by the Shanghai Charity Foundation and donated part of a
day’s sales revenue to support women living in poverty for
gynecological examination and the elderly in difficulties.

In May 2023, our Suzhou store participated in Warm Hut Project
themed "Lighting Hope, Illuminating the Future” organised by Ying
Chun Hua Love Federation (il HE & [ B & &) of the Suzhou
Industrial Park, helping to alleviate the financial burden of families in
need who travelled long distances to seek medical treatment. The
store provided free accommodation — a temporary place for poor
children and their families who come from other places for medical
treatments to live in Suzhou, thereby offering accommodation and
living assistance to the families during their treatment in the
hospital.

In August 2023, each store actively launched the donation activity
"Support Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province Floods”, as these regions
were ravaged by extremely heavy rainfall, and made donation
totaling RMB1,500,000 to support the flood relief work through the
Shanghai Charity Foundation (/8 1 2 & # &), contributing our
part to the flood relief and reconstruction work and stand with
compatriots in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei to fight against the disaster and
weather the storm.

The Group continued to work with various charitable organisations to

actively interact with local communities in different ways during the year.

To care for the welfare of local vulnerable communities and the younger

generation, in the financial year 2023, the Group worked with the

charitable organisations including the Shanghai Charity Foundation,
Shanghai Jing'an District Civil Affairs Bureau, Shanghai Charitable
Education and Training Center, Suzhou Industrial Park Charity Foundation

and Ying Chun Hua Love Federation of Suzhou Industrial Park.
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Outlook

The Group will continue to uphold our principles in a responsible manner
and strive to strike a balance among the interests of our customers,
employees, shareholders, and society, and is committed to the
coordinated developments between the enterprise and the society, the
enterprise and the environment and the enterprise and the stakeholders,
and make contributions to the society.
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Corporate Governance Report
Mz fmhe \Aiﬁd:

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors (“Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2023, except the following deviation:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not segregated
but such arrangement would facilitate the development and execution of
the Group's business strategies and enhances efficiency and effectiveness
of its operations.

Corporate Culture

The Group focuses on the development of the Jiuguang brand,
continuously optimizing its product mix and creating a rich and
comfortable shopping environment to meet people’s pursuit of a stylish
and quality lifestyle. Pursuant to the corporate culture standards set by the
Board, the Group applies the four core values of innovation, teamwork,
excellence and integrity throughout its daily operation and management,
and actively strives to create value for customers, employees, partners and
shareholders.

Innovation — As consumer behavior continues to change and evolve, the
Group is committed to creating added value for customers and business
partners through the promotion of new products, processes, propositions
and business models. Recently, the Group pressed ahead with its
marketing strategy of omni-channel membership management, with new
retail business initiatives that integrate online platforms and its retail
establishments to promptly capture the opportunities presented by the
e-commerce boom and surge in demand for online shopping.

Teamwork — The Group promotes and encourages trust and cooperation
among its employees and teams. This not only creates better shopping
experience for customers but will keep employees motivated during
challenging times. Team members encouraged each other and pulled
together to overcome the operational issues and difficulties and spared no
efforts to face the various challenges in the market.
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Excellence — The Group's pursuit of excellence and quality is evident not
only in the projects it develops, but also in the subtleties of its daily
operations. The Group aims to consolidate its leading position in the
lifestyle and retail sector and expand its VIP customer base. As a pioneer in
introducing unique and sophisticated lifestyle concepts, the Group's
venues have become some of the most popular shopping and
entertainment destinations in the regions where it operates.

Integrity — The Group strives to adhere to high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance in all its activities and operations, and
attaches great importance to the character of its team members and
quality of its products. The Group has not only adopted the code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in the Listing Rules, but has also
established an interest declaration and whistleblowing mechanism which
the Group shares with its business partners to promote fairness and trust.

The Group communicates its corporate culture to all employees, business
partners, and shareholders through various trainings, meetings and
manuals. The Group also provides channels for all stakeholders to voice
their concerns in relation to the Group’s operations. The Board is
responsible for monitoring operating practices and taking appropriate
actions to uphold and promote the Group's reputation.

As at the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and concluded that
the Group's corporate culture is consistent with its purpose, values and
strategy. The Group will continue to provide training to its directors and
employees to ensure that its core values are reflected and carried through
in its day-to-day operations.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of seven
directors, including three executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group’s business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this annual report. Details of the
changes to the composition of the Board, during the year and up to
the date of this report, are provided in the "Directors’ Report” under
the section “Directors”. The directors’ biographical details and the
relationships among them are set out in the "Profile of Directors” in
this annual report.
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(2)

(3)
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The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has three female
out of seven of the directors of the Company, representing
approximately 42.86%. The Company targets to maintain the
number of female directors in the Board representing at least one-
third of the Board members in the long run and will continue to
promote gender parity at all levels of the workforce within the
Group. Consistent with such objective, the Group will monitor and
evaluate the relevant policy and progress from time to time so as to
achieving a balanced gender diversity. Having considered the
Group's current business model and the employment market, the
Board believes that there is no mitigating factor or circumstance
which would make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
within the Group more challenging.

For details of the gender ratio of the Group's workforce, please refer
to the relevant data set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report section to this report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, being
the same person, is responsible for setting overall strategic plan and
development of the Group as well as for implementing the Board's
decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's overall
performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources
are available to implement the business strategies being adopted
from time to time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and
direction for management, reporting to the Board on the Group's
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for further
evaluation and assessment by the Board.

(2)

(3)
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Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximising the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.
While proper mechanism has been put in place such that
independent views and input shall be available to the Board, the
Company will further refine, as and when appropriate, such
mechanism to ensure its effectiveness.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company's articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director so appointed shall
hold office only until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

There is no specific term for all non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and all directors (including
non-executive directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and are subject to re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Meetings

The Board held four meetings during the year to consider and/or
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results
announcements and financial statements, material transactions, to
ratify the revised terms of reference of the remuneration committee
of the Company effective from 1 January 2023, which align with the
latest amendments to the Listing Rules and to review quarterly
operating performance of the Group.

Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in
person or through video/telephone conferencing means in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association. The attendance record of each director at the Board
meetings and general meetings held during the year is set out

(5)

(6)
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KA o

REARPEBERZMANEGREE EF
BEREERI NG BFEGHET AL
BARFEEEEH SESNFRLE
EERARBRARG ZRHHRIIMT

below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HEBITEBRHE
Annual Extraordinary
Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting
Directors 5= EEEER RRBFAE REBIKRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BlEs 4/4 11 11
Mr. Lau Kam Sen 2SREE *4/4 01 01
Ms. Lau Kam Shim el N C| *4/4 1/1 0/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRIETS/NE 4/4 11 0/1
Independent Non-executive BAFHITES
Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NE 4/4 11 0/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR N 5 A 4/4 0/1 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai AR HE 4/4 1/1 1/1

* His/Her appointment became effective after the conclusion of the board

meeting held on 20 March 2023 but he/she attended such board meeting
by invitation.

* HEIR-_ZE-_=F=ZA-_+ARTHES
EEHRAREBEN HEERLEZESS

BiE o
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Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee
Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board Committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
Committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant
Board Committee members in a timely manner before the
meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board Committee meetings. Board and Board
Committee minutes are available for inspection by the directors and
Board Committee members.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction pack covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company will be
provided to each newly appointed director, if any. The Company
continuously updates the directors on the Group's businesses and
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements.

During the year, the directors participated the following training:

(7)

(8)

ESenHBTZES2R2EARE
Ll
NREMEREBRARMAFLRETE
FEREBETZERER  UNETTE
EERAEEMNEETZB AKX
ERHERAN ERERELREFER
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FEENRMBEN - ARRFEMMES
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Types of Training

Directors 5= oE Ekid)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Gyt A, C

Mr. Lau Kam Sen* 2SR E A C

Ms. Lau Kam Shim* 2|5 4/ R A, C

Non-executive Director FHTES

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy PR AL 35 /)N E A, C

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRR/ NME A B, C

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR A& A C

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MR e 4 A, B, C

A — reading materials provided by the Company relating to A — BEBRARFREEEARARE
the Company'’s businesses and regular updates on the BUARBEESRRELEEN L
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements MRRBI R EAMEREERENTE
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities HE AR

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums B — HEAUEEBBREENE®R
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities g/ e g% wiE

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate C — HMERMCEELREH BRER

governance matters, environment and social issues or
director’s duties and responsibilities

* appointed on 20 March 2023

—E-=FEH
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group's financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2023, the remunerations paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately RMB2.8 million and
approximately RMBO0.4 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group respectively. Details of non-audit services and the
fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information RMBO0.4 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2023
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Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have
been established with specific terms of reference to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities.

(1) Audit Committee
The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam
Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man,
Raymond, all are independent non-executive directors. The audit
committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, who is a certified
public accountant. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company's website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company's
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) to review the Company's financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members ERZEEHRE HEBITERRE
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MICBT A (EFE) 2/2
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREM/ A 2/2
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIS 2/2

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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(2)

52

In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group's interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
(iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group; and
(v) reviewed the management's position and basis of assessment on
major judgmental areas concerning the auditor’'s modified opinion.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai,
who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide
advice and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management; (ii) any specific
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office
of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FHEEERE HEBITERRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBt 11
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MBI (FFE) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRR/ NE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIB X SE 1/1

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and
recommended for the Board's approval (i) the discretionary bonus
for the chief executive officer for the year 2022; and (ii) the
remuneration packages of the directors for the year 2023, including
two new executive directors appointed to the Board in March 2023.
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Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is the chairman of
the nomination committee. The nomination committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.
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The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

FR - REZBEERT - REH-BX
BegRBEHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members RBEZEERE HEBITEERE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman) RIEIB A (XF) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRR/ NE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIB X e 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MR 11

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) advised on the
nomination of new executive directors appointed to the Board in
March 2023; (i) reviewed the existing structure, size and composition
of the Board; (iii) reviewed the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and (iv) made recommendations to the Board on
the proposed re-election of the retiring directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Group’s system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organisational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
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The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
director and audit committee periodically. In case material internal control
defects are noticed, the internal audit team will perform further
investigation and report the confirmed material defects and findings to the
audit committee for further action, if any. The internal audit also follows up
with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls conducted by the internal audit team, the half-yearly review and
annual audit conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance
that the Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group's accounting policies
and applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain
extent independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December, 2023, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2023 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analyst's briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive director and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.
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Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements in
force but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company also
provides an opportunity for communication between the Board and the
shareholders.

In addition, the Company maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. The shareholders communication policy of the Company is also
available on the Company's website and is reviewed periodically to ensure
that such policy is effectively implemented and so far the Company
considered the arrangement and communication channel stated in such
policy remains effective and sufficient during the year. Regular meetings
are also held with institutional investors and research analysts to provide
them with timely updates on the Group's latest business developments
which are not inside information (as defined under the Listing Rules) in
nature. These activities will keep the public informed of the Group's
activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.

Dividend Policy

The Company currently does not have a pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Any declaration, payment and amount of dividend in the future are
subject to the Board's discretion having regard to the Group’s future
financial performance and earnings, capital requirement financial
conditions and other factors as the Board may consider relevant.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, on a one
vote per share basis, shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business or resolution specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself (themselves)
may convene a physical meeting at only one location which will be the
principal meeting place, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) as a result shall be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the
Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the “Corporate Information” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

For details in relation to shareholders’ right, please refer to the articles of
association of the Company which is available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle China Group Limited

20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk

Constitutional Documents

The Company has adopted the second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association by way of a special resolution
passed at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 March 2023. Save
as disclosed above, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association during the year.

The consolidated version of the Company’s memorandum and articles of

association has been published at the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

58

RERER

RIEAR A R A ERMANES8IE - A —fzsk Nt
FRESEREABETIRARBHEBRA
(B—B—ZEHEAEARNFRRERREG ZHERE)
DZ—HBRE  RNERRESEESRAESS
FARRRZARMERLEEE R BkEEY
BRABRRERRS - LUEREZE KT IEAMTMR
HBEIRZE  BRARSRREZZERENQ)E
AT - EREEZERAE_+—QNVER &
eREHRAHAEHATZERF AIREATH
BEA AT EFAETRETE(EBATESH
e BRBUASELENAAARERAYIESR
KRR B AR E L E -

A EZ EHFBRBAXRXANRB ZBRER - it
RE B REE B FFESSS R AP L 208 -

RE—MUATHBRSEZZREF  BIIRARF
WU ETEANTREER] 2510 -

BERBRRERZFHE  F2HARRMARERA
A (BB AR R KB AZ prAguh)

BRAMEABRAEEFEBRRWERE
EERREEH  BEFEOT

NEME
FEFBEEBERAA

N

i 8 /2 BT JE 75 18 555K

AT L2018

{£ 5 : (852) 2838 2030

EH : info@lifestylechina.com.hk

HBERXH
AARBBR_E_=—F=A-1+B8TZERE
FRIRE FBBZHFRIRBERRNE —HEB:T
LB EFZERRMEAA - Bk EuliEFEE I
FNZNA ) H AR A2 A4 R 4B BVE AT
(EEREE

ARBEBERRA LA 2 ERAETER
Bt 32 P SR AN X R4 o

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2023



Profile of Directors

EEEN

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 70, joined the Company in January 2016. He is the Chairman
and chief executive officer, and is also director of certain subsidiaries and
all associated companies of the Company. Mr. Lau is also the chairman and
a non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the
shares of which were withdrawn from listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December 2022 pursuant to a
privatization initiative). He is a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee and a member of the board
of directors of the Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC. Mr. Lau is the
father of Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim.

Mr. Lau Kam Sen

Mr. KS Lau, aged 35, was appointed an executive director of the Company
on 20 March 2023 and has served as director of certain subsidiaries and
associated companies of the Company since August 2023. He is also an
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the shares of
which were withdrawn from listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December 2022 pursuant to a
privatization initiative). Prior to joining the group companies of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited, he has worked in investment banking with a
global financial institution in Hong Kong. Mr. KS Lau holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from Columbia University in the City of New York and a Master
of Arts degree from New York University. He is the son of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas and the brother of Ms. Lau Kam Shim.

Ms. Lau Kam Shim

Ms. Lau, aged 36, was appointed an executive director of the Company on
20 March 2023 and has served as director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company since August 2023. She is also an executive director of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (the shares of which were withdrawn from
listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
December 2022 pursuant to a privatization initiative). She is currently the
president of the International Association of Department Stores. Ms. Lau is
also a member of the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association and a member of the Retail & Tourism
Committee with the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. She
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from King's College London, University of
London and a Master of Arts degree from Columbia University in the City
of New York. Ms. Lau is the daughter of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and
the sister of Mr. Lau Kam Sen.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 62, joined the Company in March 2016. She has over 20
years of experience in corporate management. Ms. Chan holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor degree in Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Ms. Cheung, aged 58, joined the Company in June 2016. Ms. Cheung is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from the University of London and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
the University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries). Ms. Cheung has more than 30 years of experience
in the company secretarial sector. She has pursued her career in the legal
sector since 2006 and is currently a partner at S.Y. Wong & Co, a law firm in
Hong Kong. She is the President of the Hong Kong Sailing Federation.

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 69, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Cheung is an
entrepreneur and has over 10 years of experience in the department store
industry. He also has over 20 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and served as a director of the 15th
Board of Directors of the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers in 1992.

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lam, aged 68, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Lam was
executive director, group financial controller and company secretary of
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, until his resignation in May 2023. He has
over 40 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting industries.
Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountants (Practising) and holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the PRC.

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 77.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 17 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the "“Five-Year Group Financial

1

Summary” on page 155. No important event affecting the Group has

occurred since the end of the financial year under review.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 18 to 43 of this annual report.
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Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. During the year, less
than 30% of the Group's revenue were attributed by the Group's five
largest customers and approximately 74% of the Group's purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers in respect of our direct
sales and approximately 18% of the Group's purchases were attributed by
the largest supplier.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their respective
close associates or any shareholder who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest suppliers of
the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB1,838,000 (2022: RMB319,000).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Kam Sen*

Ms. Lau Kam Shim*

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

* appointed on 20 March 2023

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Lam Kwong
Wai will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Changes in Information of Directors
Below are the changes in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
—  His monthly salary will be adjusted to HK$800,000 with effect from
1 April 2024

Mr. Lau Kam Sen
—  His monthly salary will be adjusted to HK$300,000 with effect from
1 April 2024

—  Appointed as a director of certain subsidiaries and associated
companies of the Company since August 2023

Ms. Lau Kam Shim
—  Her monthly salary will be adjusted to HK$300,000 with effect from
1 April 2024

—  Appointed as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company since
August 2023
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, the directors’ and the chief executive's interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange ("Listing Rules”) were as follows:

EERESTTHRAERRKRSG - HERH
REER R
R-BE-_=ZF+-A=+—H 2L &STT
BABRAR RS E R 2 ABEEE (R(EHF R
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EIEM B3GR RN AR F 2 B ARk
RIEEBBERSHMERAR ([BRAT])EH L
mAREI(T LR MERCIFFE 2 ( EMEITA
BERETESRFHEESTAN(ELESTR]) A
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Long position in shares of the Company REAQARRGBZHER
Number of Percentage of
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERG HEBRTRA
EEpg B HERHE #E ZESHL
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 252,051,460 17.21%
ElEebtes EmEAA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note) 844,988,832 57.70%
R E R ()
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy Beneficial owner 297,000 0.02%

RiER /A EmfEAA

Note: The 844,988,832 shares comprise:

(a) 540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”).
United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
through Asia Prime Assets Limited (“Asia Prime”, the entire issued share
capital of which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas) and as to
20% by certain family members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder
brother of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in
which United Goal is interested.

(b) 304,988,832 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”),
which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same

parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company:

BREBSFRBERHIEATFHEZRE
=

RZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—H8 THWALCFTE
BARABESIRSITHRAE)RAQAT Z KM
MAEBROFEHERERES BRI F3360&
HMERHNBEFZERMASKMEARAR 2 #
mIORBEINT

Long position in shares of the Company REQXARGZHR
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
BERH HERITRG
=x 517 e =] ZBEDH
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 2) 540,000,000 36.87%
EmEAa A (FiE2)
Asia Prime Interest of controlled corporation 540,000,000 36.87%
(Notes 1 and 2)
EEfEE S (M1 R2)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 2) 304,988,832 20.83%
EmiEAa A (FiiE2)
Notes: B EE -
1. Asia Prime, a company wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,Thomas, holds 80% of 1. Asia Prime RE|EBEELERA2RE AFE

the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia Prime is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising 540,000,000

shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

2. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, Mr. Lau Kam Sen and Ms. Lau Kam Shim are directors

of United Goal, Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements
The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

80% United Goal &2 #1TRAR - RIFFEF LHE
&4+ Asia Prime 118 A7 United Goal Bz # B &Y
540,000,000 % % 17 o 8 5 16 R A% 1) i 25

2. BIEREE - BSR4 KBS ¥E/NE R United
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

There was no competing business of which a director of the Company had
an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section "Connected Transaction and
Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company or any
entities connected with the director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected
Transactions

The following transaction constituted one-off connected transaction and/
or non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the Company
("Continuing Connected Transactions”) under the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

EENBFRB o ER
ARREFLEAEAHET LB HARE L
CLIETRICY S5t P T8

EENRG TR ZER

BRTXTHERSRSERERS ] —HMKRE
S AAREFXEERRBENTMEEMRE
RARBHEERKMER R AL ARFRKF
NERMBERDAERZEARS RERAH
oERSEERBERENES

BEFZRERX
REANRZ BB ERMA - SUEEHERL
FEEAP 91T EL BB 7 ) A ol B B b
HEZ —RARECREANAEFESH
4 AAREAXEBEERERBEABEEE
MEERERBERERBIERRE -

REXZRERERBERS

BE-_ZT-=F+-_A=+t—HIEER " BE
EWRA ARRZ TR B —RIERER
SR/ BT ERFERERS ([HEBRER
1) e

1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEWHR
Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps amount Transaction amount
within the Group Counter Party (Note 1) agreement Terms transaction for the year 2023 for the year 2023
ZECZEp “BCZEY
REERAH REHFEB(WE) HEEH 3] RH%E FELREHE R5EH
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR%TT) (AR®TT)

Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy (i) 26 November (i) 10October 2004 to (i) Lease of entire (i) () Lease/Rental Expense: (i) (a) Lease/Rental Expense:
Department Store City Plaza Co. Ltd." 2004 30 September 2024 building of HE/HERL: BE/HER%:
Limited (“Shanghai ("Shanghai Joinbuy i &3 “ZENETA-BZE Shanghai Joinbuy 163,000 143,395
Ongoing”), City Plaza"), a +—A=t+/H “E-RENAZTH City Plaza Building (Note 2) (Note 3)

a company owned company owned of ("Shanghai (MzE2) (M33)
of 5% by the Group 50% by the Group Premises”) (Note 2) (b) Management Fee: (b) Management Fee:

HEAKBEERRAT LEABHTESER BERELBAR ERE: ERE:
([LEAR)) - KA LENBSET Wi EAAE 42,000 4,79
REBEE6%RIE B5)  REEEE (g5 (Note 2)

NG S0% R M A F (H£2) (H&2)
(ii) 28 December (i) 1 October 2024 to (ii) Lease of the (i) N/A(Note 5) (i) N/A (Note 5)
2022 30 September 2044 Shanghai Premises TER (M3E5) @A (fizEs)
it S 3 “Z-META-AZ (Note 4)
TZAZt/N\R “ZOmEAA=TR RELEEESN
(Bizz4)

" The English name is translated for identification purpose only
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2.  Entrusted Loan Agreement

2. ZEXERMHE

Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps amount Transaction amount
within the Group Counter Party (Note 1) agreement Terms transaction for the year 2023 for the year 2023
—E-zEy - Sei$ - 3
rEARAH THHHERE (W) BEAA 5 ZHtE FELREE R5EE
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR®T7R) (AR%T7)
Shanghai Shanghai Joinbuy 23 June 2021 23 June 2021 to Provision of 100,000 NIL
Ongoing City Plaza it St 22 June 2024 entrusted loan(s) (Note 6) &
EBAK LEhESTRE AAZTZE ZB--§RA-TZRE (Note ¢} (Hfzxe)
“TIMERAZTIR REZHER
(Fit3te)
Notes: P 5
1. Shanghai Ongoing is owned as to 5% by E/8 W& (£ E) B R A A 1. FEAXA DEAE (RE)BERAF(NAE
(Shanghai Joinbuy Group Co., Ltd.") (“Joinbuy Group”) and 30% by /& SEDRESANABROBRAR(NER
N AR BB A F (Shanghai Joinbuy Co., Ltd.") (“Joinbuy Co.”). Joinbuy B 1) 5 Bl E5%M30%AHE - NEEB K
Group and Joinbuy Co. (whose controlling shareholder is Joinbuy Group), hERG (KERERSNVEEE) SR E
being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are connected AXREERRE  AARAIRMEAREEH
persons of the Company at the subsidiary level. As Shanghai Joinbuy City BEAL - BR EENERTESHNLES
Plaza is owned as to 12% by Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Co., B RN E R D BRI 12% Kk 38% A HE - 1R
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza is an associate of Joinbuy Co. and a B EmRE - EFhERTESANERS
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level under the Listing OB B A A SR AN 1R RI DA BT BB 2 R JE T O 8 22
Rules. AL e
2. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the 2. R G MEE FREE—TFIERNAATEEH
announcement “Renewal of Annual Caps” of the Company dated RIE-_—FT_A=1THIEEFE LR
30 December 2021. EOPANCE
3. The previously obtained annual caps pursuant to HKFRS 16 and Listing 3. ERIRBEBMIBHREENFE 165 R LT
Rules consisted of depreciation charge, interest charge and turnover rent AIESHFE LReE LEEE5mREMR
under the existing tenancy agreement for the Shanghai Premises. Upon the EMEETWNEER FEBRAREEHE
New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement (as defined below) became e M EEAXBEHRERZE(EER
effective, the Group remeasured (i) depreciation charge over the life of the TN ERE - AEBERIER FFE L5
right-of-use-asset and (i) interest expense calculated based on lease MEEHRSEMTE()ERREEFHNOIT
liability over the lease term in respect of the extension to the lease term for EERARZEEHNEEETENTE
the Shanghai Premises. FIsz o
4. The new tenancy agreement entered into between Shanghai Ongoing as 4. ERAKWEREEAN)E EENERTES
tenant and Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza as landlord in relation to the (EREF)R_F_—_F+-A=-+/\BH L
Shanghai Premises dated 28 December 2022 (“New Shanghai Jiuguang RIS T 2 TR E s (3T B AR E
Tenancy Agreement”) constituted very substantial acquisition and one-off HiEEH=E]) RE ETRAIBKRART 2 IEE
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules which was BAWEEERNMBER S - BERER
approved by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general TR =F= AT HBT AR RREER
meeting of the Company held on 20 March 2023. Further details of the Ag ik - FAEE - GRS 2 E—
transaction have been set out in the Company’s announcement dated BERARFHAR T —_F+-_A=1+N\
28 December 2022 (“Announcement”) and circular dated 22 February 2023 Az ((ZAs) kBA—S-_=F_A
(“Circular”) in relation to the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy Agreement. - Bz@m(ZEml) - ARBRE e
AKBEEERZ -
5. Further details of the proposed annual caps being set for the three financial 5. FABE—T-IF -
year ending 2024, 2025 and 2026, commencing on 1 October 2024, were FIE=EMBRFE (B2 -MNF+A—HiE
set out in the Announcement and the Circular. Payment of the turnover rent A ZEBRFE LR 2E—SHBINZLE
(if any) and management fees under the New Shanghai Jiuguang Tenancy RFZBE - RE ETHRAE AT - 31 HDEA
Agreement constitutes continuing connected transactions of the Company KEEHERHE T2 E¥EES (W
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. B)REBBEBRARNBZHEWERS -
6. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the 6. UG REE R E—SHIEHNART]

announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2021 and its supplemental
announcement dated 28 June 2021.

n

The English name is translated for identification purpose only
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All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

To the extent the transactions disclosed above which are also related party
transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, these related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Certain related party transactions in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2023.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, taking into
consideration to the Company's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.
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Employees

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,172 employees
(including executive directors), with 1,166 based in the Chinese Mainland
and 6 in Hong Kong. The staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)
amounted to RMB208.4 million (2022: RMB192.7 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The Group ensures that pay levels of its
employees are competitive and in line with the market trend and its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC") . A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to reappoint PwC as
auditor of the Company. There has been no change in auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

19 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B ABERE

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 77 to 154 comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As further detailed in note 17 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group holds equity interests in certain associated
companies herein referred to as "Beiren Group”. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group recognised a share of profits of associates
of RMB308.9 million and carried RMB3,572.1 million investments in
associates on the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, of which RMB308.3 million of the share of profits of
associates for the year and RMB3,568.8 million of the carrying value of
investments in associates as at 31 December 2023 were attributable to the
Beiren Group.

In 2019, the Group made a full expected credit loss allowance, net of
deferred tax credit (“Full Impairment”) against the entire overdue trade
receivable balances due from three PRC companies (“Debtors”) of the
Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”), for the purpose of recognising the
Group's share of results of the Beiren Group. Such Trade Receivables are
guaranteed by the ultimate beneficial owner of the Debtors (the
“Guarantor”). The impact of the Full Impairment on the Group's share of
losses of associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0 million respectively.

We have previously qualified our auditor’s report on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
due to a limitation of scope as we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidences on whether any adjustments were necessary to the
carrying amount of the Trade Receivables of nil balance and the related
deferred tax credit in respect of the aforementioned Full Impairment made
in 2019, which has consequential impact on (i) the Group's share of profits
of associates for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the carrying value
of its investments in associates as at that date; (ii) the Group's loss
attributable to owners and profit attributable to non-controlling interests in
the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022; and (jii) the
equity attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interests on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Guarantor was still being
detained by the relevant local authority and there was no development on
Beiren Group's action to recover the Trade Receivables. Based on latest
information available as well as recent court judgements, the Group's
independent legal adviser is of the opinion that the likelihood of
recoverability of the balance of Trade Receivables is very low. The Group's
management are of the view that the new legal advice further strengthens
the basis of their assessment that the recoverability of the Trade
Receivables is remote and the Full Impairment against the Trade
Receivables as at 31 December 2023 is appropriate.
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Despite the new legal opinion is able to support the Group's assessment
of the Full Impairment against the Trade Receivables as at 31 December
2023, we were still unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
we considered necessary to assess the recoverable amounts of the Trade
Receivables as at 1 January 2023. Given the abovementioned scope
limitations, there were no other satisfactory procedures that we could
perform to determine whether any adjustments to the carrying amount of
the Trade Receivables of nil balance and the related deferred tax credit in
respect of the Full Impairment as at 1 January 2023 which could have a
consequential effect on (i) the Group's share of profit of associates for the
year ended 31 December 2023, and (i) the Group's profit attributable to
owners and profit attributable to non-controlling interests in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to share of results of
associates and investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group
(except for the carrying amount of the Trade Receivables of nil balance and
the related deferred tax credit in respect of the Full Impairment as at
1 January 2023 and corresponding impact on the Group's share of profits
of associates for the year ended 31 December 2023 as mentioned under
"Basis for Qualified Opinion”).
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %5 37 # £ £ 5} &5(4&)

Key Audit Matter
BRET SR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAHERENSHETEE

Share of results of associates and investments in
associates in respect of Beiren Group (except for the
carrying amount of the Trade Receivables of nil balance
and the related deferred tax credit in respect of the Full
Impairment as at 1 January 2023 and corresponding
impact on the Group’s share of profits of associates for
the year ended 31 December 2023 as mentioned under
"Basis for Qualified Opinion”)
FRLASENEEBEAREERNBEEATANRE (TR
BERRNER I FER-_S-_=F—-A - BEKWRAKREE
EERRAERERZERENERECHEEEUARYE &
KREBE-_T_=Ft+-A=t-RLEEREBEQTER
R ME FESCEBR D)

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
SEZEVBMEMET -

The Group has equity interests in a group of companies
herein referred to as “Beiren Group”) which were accounted
for as associates under the equity method. The Beiren
Group's principal activities include operation of department
stores and supermarkets. The results of the Beiren Group is
highly dependent on the revenues derived from its retail
operations which typically comprise of high volume of low-
value transactions.
EEEMPUTHERMLARE ] 2 —ERATHEERE  BiE
B EARIMERZ AT - LAEBEIZXB R REERH
EERBET - LARENXERR/EKBETEEBELENK
AN HEZEEBR - REBEHELLSNEEERS -

The significance of the share of results and investments in the
Beiren Group's results warrants significant audit effort in this
area.

EHILAEBERERRIEASEEENREEEEN - 8R
FPBREPFEEHINEMRE -

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter, amongst
other procedures, include but not limited to:

HMERIB U RER BT RN FZF (BEEMIEF) BIEET
FRR

o Discussing with Group management and the Beiren
Group management to understand the performance and
significant events of the Beiren Group during the year in
order to identify risks that are significant to the Group.

B OEEETEEERIEASEEREETIW ATH

FRILAEENRREEREN MBS E5E

s BERNEL

° In relation to revenue recognition,

SRR UA L

o obtaining an understanding of the processes and
controls over revenue recognition;
TR ATER B BIE N B

o testing the key controls of IT systems and controls

over revenue recognition; and
B E MBS R RN ARERIE S EryF Z e
®

o testing revenue transactions by different revenue
streams, on a sample basis, to relevant supporting
documents such as contractual agreements,
invoices and cash settlement records.

A A - HRARBRAR - BIRAR 5 Bk
BRAXM (Wa0H=  ERMRSEELE) ET
AE

J Assessing whether the financial information of the Beiren
Group was prepared in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies and reviewing adjustments to
conform to the Group's accounting policies.
SHEIEASBEMBERESIRE SEESTTEERFE -
WEMEMEAR  UFE ESENSHEE-

Based on the procedures performed, we found that, in the
context of our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s share of results of associates and
investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group (except
for carrying amount of the Trade Receivables of nil balance and
the related deferred tax credit in respect of the Full Impairment
as at 1 January 2023 and corresponding impact on the Group's
share of profits of associates for the year ended 31 December
2023 as mentioned under “Basis for Qualified Opinion”) were
supported by the available evidence.

EREATHRER - RPRE - BHME EEEGESVER
ROBEME - IEREEXS ESEFSERIASENEMNG
BMERNAEBERNRBERRZRE ([REERNVER | PRt
R = -A-HBREKKRBEREABEARAZREWRZER
ENAEEEHERRALY EEE8E T - =F+_H
=T BHIEFERIERE R RDENNERZERIN)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) % 37 # £ & & 5(4&)

Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the Group's
share of profits of associates for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the Group's profit attributable to owners and profit attributable to
non-controlling interests in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2023. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other
information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %5 37 # £ £ 5} &5(4&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) % 37 # £ & & 5(4&)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEEREAMEERRER

forthe year ended 31 December 2023 BIZE —E - =F + - A=1+—HAILLFE

2023 2022
—E=-= -
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
s AR¥TR ARETFT
Revenue WA 4 1,348,975 1,127,588
Cost of sales SHE AR (563,541) (469,484)
Gross profit EF 785,434 658,104
Other income and gains HaA R 6 217,636 229,184
Selling and distribution costs THE & o A A (612,132) (577,769)
Administrative expenses 1TEBAX (261,326) (235,932)
Interest and investment income FERKE WA 7 73,862 26,165
Share of profit of a joint venture EiE—EEErE R 18 27,238 19,117
Share of profits of associates FE (R EE = R g A 17 308,939 182,205
Finance costs BRE A 8 (181,938) (115,653)
Profit before taxation B 5 A 357,713 185,421
Taxation A (82,164) (78,848)
Profit for the year REE A 10 275,549 106,573
Other comprehensive income Hfh 2 e
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to BERA e EMOEE
profit or loss: BwmozIER
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEGINEBRES
foreign operations 2T N 20 177
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEEME 20 177
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFZTHEKRAE 275,569 106,750
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: RNEFEER R
(Ei8) -
Owners of the Company PAN/NCIE Z SN 87,767 (24,441)
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR R 187,782 131,014
275,549 106,573
Total comprehensive income/(expense) G EERE
attributable to: (Fx%) B
Owners of the Company PAN/NCIE SN 87,787 (24,264)
Non-controlling interests Bl 2l g Fa 187,782 131,014
275,569 106,750
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARET
Earnings/(losses) per share attributable to owners AR RHEE AL 2
of the Company BREN/(&#8)
— Basic and diluted — BEAR R #E 13 0.060 (0.017)

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

at31 December 2023 W —E—_=F+-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —_EF_—
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
M 5 ARET AREEFTT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - B RFE 14 5,042,882 5,267,550
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 3,569,973 2,237,164
Investment property wEME 16 1,230,863 1,261,645
Investments in associates REEE RN B IR E 17 3,572,148 3,272,654
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELENRE 18 364,455 360,057
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE B 19 26,081 5,298
Other receivables H th FE U 3R 7B 20 5,353 5,352
13,811,755 12,409,720
Current assets MENE =
Inventories T8 21 93,877 109,471
Trade and other receivables i AT BR SR % EL A i KGR IE 20 194,893 211,378
Amounts due from associates JE U Bt i N B X8 23 112,782 108,994
Structured bank deposits EREMIRTTIER 25 580,800 —
Cash and cash equivalents B NIREEEY 24 2,242,826 1,609,097
3,225,178 2,038,940
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade and other payables JEMERR R B EN IR 26 959,356 1,094,625
Amount due to a joint venture Bt —EaE&EERE 22 37,640 12,580
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FERTPT B A R — %
of subsidiaries FEFERR AR R 2 BB 30 26,142 26,142
Tax payable JE ST IE 26,521 23,984
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITIEE — —FN T H 27 40,000 1,120,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 45,809 105,447
Contract liabilities BREE 29 13,668 9,691
1,149,136 2,392,469
Net current assets/(liabilities) FRBEE(Aaf) 2,076,042 (353,529)
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year IRITIEE — —F&EH 27 3,238,000 1,120,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 1,566,061 82,960
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTEEE 19 67,198 54,367
4,871,259 1,257,327
11,016,538 10,798,864
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %24 81 % ik 5 (&)
at31 December2023 R —E-_=F+_A=+—H

2023 2022
—E=-= -
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M 3 ARBF T AREBTFT

Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital J% 7 31 6,291 6,291
Reserves & 9,392,289 9,304,502
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRABHEE AEGOER 9,398,580 9,310,793
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR = 1,617,958 1,488,071
11,016,538 10,798,864
The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 154 were approved  H77E214BHFREVBRREESEN _T=

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2024 and
were signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
BIEBEEE
Executive Director

HITEE

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

FZATNBHERBERENE  Yh THESEK

REE

Mr. Lau Kam Sen
BSREE

Executive Director

#

P

TEE
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 # &=

N

n

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

forthe year ended 31 December 2023 BIZE —E - =F + - A=1+—HAILLFE

2023 2022
—E=-= T —4F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBT AREBFT
Operating activities AT
Profit before taxation B 7 B K 357,713 185,421
Adjustments for: LYER AT A
Interest income on bank deposits and RITERZ N EBHA
investment income from structured bank deposits MEEBERITER
ZIEWA (73,862) (26,165)
Finance costs B & R AN 181,938 115,653
Net exchange gain VI U (684) (7,008)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB R&E
e 241,600 245,763
Depreciation of investment property REMEFE 30,782 30,782
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 148,780 167,704
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE WEX
R EE 107 172
Share of profit of a joint venture Bh—Ra&tE
il (27,238) (19,117)
Share of profits of associates i N b (308,939) (182,205)
Loss allowance on expected credit losses for trade FEN AR R R E R
receivables and lease receivables FIBZEBEE
BERZEBEEREG 6,491 2,162
Operating cash flows before movements in working EELESBEAILE
capital REemE 556,688 513,162
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL,(3EMm) 15,594 (7,398)
Decrease in trade and other receivables JFEE U5 BR 5 B H b FE UK
IR D 21,959 66,180
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to a joint venture N —MBE&ERERIEA
#hn, Crd) 25,060 (35,156)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables JE A<F BR 5k B2 H At FE A
FIEE IO D) 112,644 (189,796)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHaEEm CRd) 3,977 (2,569)
Cash generated from operations REXBAER® 735,922 344,423
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHFRETEMSH (87,579) (75,738)

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) %4 1 &7 8 K(#)
for the year ended 31 December 2023l Z — T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-= -
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TF ARBETF T
Net cash from operating activities REEBRERE 648,343 268,685
Investing activities REED
Interest received on bank deposits BUYRITIFERZFE 46,136 31,833
Dividend received from associates M N El 2z B WA B 5,657 6,526
Dividend and interest received from a joint venture H—HMaBErEZBEK
B2 K F S 22,840 31,105
Investment income received from structured bank WEBMRITIFRZ
deposits B URE WA 15,760 —
Purchase of structured bank deposits REAEMIRITER (580,800)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEDE  KELRZE (265,872) (189,791
Repayment of loan from a joint venture —HEEREZ
EXEE —_ 50,000
Loan advance to a joint venture m—EaeERENRR
= —_ (50,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE  WEREE
equipment FRi§ 18 4 —
Net cash used in investing activities KELZBMARE FE (756,275) (120,327)
Financing activities mMEERY
Repayment of bank borrowings EBERTEE (2,262,000) (100,000)
New bank loans raised FERITER 3,300,000 —
Repayments of principal elements of leases liabilities BEHEREZ
e EH (58,126) (100,521)
Interest on leases liabilities paid HEBBEZEMME (57,698) (14,158)
Interest on bank borrowing paid EIERITERFBE (123,324) (101,733)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders R 48 FEIE AR
PR B B (57,895) (88,232)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities BEEREATS(FTA)
WEFR 740,957 (404,644)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents RehReEEY
#on,CRid) g8 633,025 (256,286)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FONRERHFSEED 1,609,097 1,858,198
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference fERZR B 704 7,185
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRASLREFEY 2,242,826 1,609,097

82

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BRRME

forthe year ended 31 December 2023 BIZE —E - =F + - A=1+—HAILLFE

1 General

Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law in the Cayman lIslands on 4 January 2016 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are set out in section headed
“Corporate Information” to the annual report. The Company acts as
an investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the operation of “Jiuguang” department stores and
related retailing business as well as property investment in the

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, who is also the Chairman and executive director of the

Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(“RMB") which is the functional currency of the Company.

2 Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of those
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless

otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance ("HKCO") (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for the financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), which
are measured at fair value. The preparation of consolidated
financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.
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84

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for its annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

HKAS 8 (Amendments)  Definition of Accounting

Estimates
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
(Amendments) Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
(Amendments) — Pillar Two Model Rules

The new and amended standards listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2023 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for
an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and a joint venture used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Consolidation (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. The revenues are
presented as revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer
purchases the goods at the department stores.

For income from concessionaire sales, the Group recognises
commission income over time which it is entitled and is based
on certain percentage of sales made by the concessionaires in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When they fail to
meet the minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of certain contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income as it is the amount that the Group has
the right to receive.

For service income, it represents income from concessionaires
for displaying their products and billboards in department
stores. The revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9, using
simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including obligation to provide goods or services
to customers on complementary basis and customer’s options
to acquire additional goods or services for free or at a
discount in future granted under loyalty reward program, the
Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Accounting for unredeemed gift certificates and reward
points under customer loyalty program

The unredeemed gift certificates and reward points under
customer loyalty program is recorded as contract liabilities,
and reflect the value that is expected to be redeemed, i.e.
anticipated breakage.

Breakage will need to be estimated considering the guidance
on constraining estimates of variable consideration as well as
the Group's historical experience with gift certificates and
loyalty points under loyalty reward program. Revenue is
recognised in regard to breakage in the proportion of gift
certificates and loyalty points redeemed in that period and
likely to result in the acceleration of revenue when the
possibility of redemption becomes remote.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled.

The amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group updates the estimated transaction price based on
issued statements to consignors and concessionaires
(including assessment of whether the variable consideration is
constrained) to represent fairly the circumstances present at
the end of the reporting period.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or services by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that goods or services is transferred to the customers. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire as the Group
does not control the specific goods provided by the
consignors and concessionaires before goods are transferred
to a customers.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms or
40 years

Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms or
improvements 10 years

Plant and machinery ~ 5to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of
right-of-use assets provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to

write off the cost of the investment properties over their

estimated useful lives. ltems of investment property are after

taking into account their estimated residual value, using

straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms or
40 years

Land use right Over the lease terms

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probably that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At the date of
reclassification, its cost and accumulated depreciation are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and become its
cost and accumulated depreciation for accounting purposes.
If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies 2 EARSHBERME (&)

(continued)

(g) Leases (g0 HE
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the MEYNEE-—TEDHNEET K
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of B R PE IR - LARERR(E - BY
time in exchange for consideration. A contract contains a ZEAHNN BB EEERD ©
lease if fulfilment depends on an identified asset and it BITHRREBRIEE BERE
conveys the right to control the use of that identified asset Ee B AR L B BRI EEME
throughout the period of use. FRESIE - AIZARBEHERS -
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured HEEENEERBEREABAER
on a present value basis. EITYAGHE -
(i)  Lease liabilities (i) HEEE

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the HEEEREUTHENKE

following lease payments: B ERE

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed . EENRE(REEE
payments), less any lease incentives receivable; & E TR EE) - ke
and KWHEESR &

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if . HIEAEMEI R -
the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee, Al iR 2 & B R AR
exercising an option to terminate the lease. S (ERAMEAN) 81T

BRIEZEENER
BE o

The lease payments are discounted using the interest HENHERESERNE R =

rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, (RASR AT LARETE 72 1|2 ) A&

or the Group's incremental borrowing rate, being the ErEEERFE (AEE

rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the RERMUEBERIZ TV ESER

funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a MR EE - DR CUERA 5

similar economic environment with similar term and & A& & M 28 2 H T

condition. H)BLER o
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2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
(g) Leases (continued)

(i)

(ii)

FRPEREARRAF

Lease liabilities (continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the Group as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until
effective. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leases (continued)

(i)  Right-of-use assets (continued)
The right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on a
straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets linked to owner occupied buildings
are measured applying the cost model relevant to that
specific class of property, plant and equipment.

(iij)  The Group as lessor
Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive expense and
accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and a joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

0]

(k)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Impairment on non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
()] Financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

100

Classification
The group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)
()] Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

FRPEREARRAF

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other income and gains together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

o FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
income and gains. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other income and gains and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of material accounting policies

(continued)

()] Financial instruments (continued)
(iii)  Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other income and gains
in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z — T _=F + _A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of material accounting policies 2 EARSHBERME (&)
(continued)
()  Financial instruments (continued) ) <WMIAGE
(iv) Impairment (iv) BtE
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the A2 (B S BRSNS AR EY
expected credit losses associated with its debt EHLAMNBBEREEER
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment VEH ATRE 1 25T - FTA A
methodology applied depends on whether there has BETEBARNEEREA S
been a significant increase in credit risk. BEEm -
For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are MR ER A E AR AR
considered to be of low credit risk, it is assumed that no EREERBOSREEM
significant increase in credit risk have occurred. Thus, = REREERRIT EEEY
the impairment provision is determined as 12-month hne Bt RERETER—
expected losses using general expected credit losses RIS EEBIEEAETE /12
model. 8 A IEHR & 18 -
For trade receivables and lease receivable, the Group B U BR R I A B R IE
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, o AEEERAEEMBRE
which requires expected lifetime losses to be HERIEISH o AT HI R 7% -
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, TE )0 B o s B 220 R MK PR SR Y
further details disclosed in note 20. TEEAR RIS - SRIEEAAMIEE
20 °
(m) Trade and other payables (m) ENEREIRHEMGESRE
Trade payable are obligations to pay for goods or services FERBRFIEN B EKBIEP m 4
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business EEEEEmIRBNNREE -
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are presented as JE AT BR SR B H Ath FE A< FRIE 2 51 3R
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months BHEE BRIFFEFETERNRE
after the reporting period. Trade and other payables are HeE+—EAREN - BRERKX
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at HAb N RIB RN FEER -
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Hg AEBRF R EIRE KA E o
(n) Inventories n) =&
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEUKAR R A Z R FEBIEE A
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted R - FERAUINEFE T EFE -
average method. Net realisable value represents the A#RFEETFEAGEBREE
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs TER 2 PR AR AR R A S8 & PR
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. BEEZVERAE -
HRFEEMERAE —S-=FFH 103
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Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees render the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker ("CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

2
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2

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Trade and other
receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial
instruments and short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has a right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.
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106

Summary of material accounting policies
(continued)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Structured bank deposit

Structured bank deposit are financial asset initially measured
at FVPL as interest portion is linked to non-interest rate
factors such as indices, exchange rates and commodity prices,
from which the contractual cash flows are not consistent with
the basic lending arrangement. A gain or loss that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

Significant estimates and assumptions concerning the future may be

required in selecting and applying accounting methods and policies

in these financial statements. The Group bases its estimates and

assumptions on historical experience and various other assumptions

that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual

results may differ from these estimates or assumptions.
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3  Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)
The following is a review of the more significant estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements.

(@) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward
tax losses
At 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB992,025,000 (2022: RMB816,111,000)
available for offset against future profits. For the year ended
31 December 2023, deferred tax asset of RMB15,142,000 was
recognised for tax losses because the Group reviewed the
profit forecasts of relevant entity and determined that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available and the tax
losses can be utilised.

The realisation of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously estimated, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
the revised estimate takes place.

(b) Provision for expected credit losses ("ECL") of trade

receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings/past due status as groupings of various debtors that
have similar risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based
on the Group's historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable supportable
and available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision for ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group's trade receivables and ECL are
disclosed in note 20 and 36 respectively.
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4 Revenue
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods

sold by the Group to customers, net of discounts and sales related

taxes, income from concessionaire sales, service income and rental

income during the year, and is analysed as follows:

L ON

WARRAEEFARABETHEERND
Ut K e U SR TR H M S AR BT IR~ 2R
BREFFEEEE ZWA - RBKRAARE
WA - EoT

2023 2022
:g: = =
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Recognised at a point in time: ERERBRER
Sales of goods — direct sales EREE —BQEHEE 523,341 430,287
Recognised over time: BEEREERER
Income from concessionaire sales REABFEBHEE ZWA 481,262 440,992
Service income AR 75 U A 41,509 31,762
Revenue from contracts with customers KEBFPAHZWA 1,046,112 903,041
Rental income EEWA 302,863 224,547
Total revenue FEAL PN 1,348,975 1,127,588

All the above revenue is derived in the PRC.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources

which arise from contracts with customers:

108

For sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has been transferred to customers, being at the point
the customer purchases goods at retail premises. Payment of
transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer
purchases the goods.

Income from concessionaire sales is generated from sales of
goods by the relevant concessionaires based on certain
percentage of sales in accordance with the terms of contracts.
When the concessionaires fail to meet the minimum
guarantee income in accordance with the terms of contracts,
the minimum guarantee amount is recognised as income. The
Group recognised revenue in the net amount of consideration
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for the
service, which is the commission it is entitled upon the sale of
goods by the concessionaire. The concessionaire
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the
Group's performance in processing each sales transaction as
and when each transaction is processed.

Service income is generated from the Group's promotion,
product display and billboards services at its retail premises.
Such services are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.
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Segment information

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” focusing
on operation of department stores, retailing and related business as
well as property investment in the PRC. This operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs
as disclosed in note 2, that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM") (i.e. the chief executive of the
Company). The CODM regularly reviews revenue analysis and the
profit for the year of the Group as a whole to make decisions about
resource allocation. Accordingly, no separate segment information
other than entity-wide information is presented.

The Group's non-current assets are all based in the PRC. The Group
has no customers that contributed over 10% of the total revenue of

the Group for both years.

Other income and gains

DEER
RIBBR BB RS R FEeR (& nE]
REBMNSEEBRBE —KEHI &
ERFELEEEL - TE - HEAEBI
RYIFAEE o L& 5 80 T a0 b 31 2F7 3
% REFEEBMBEREENN ST
FRENDEEREET  THEFLE
RN ([EBEERBADBIEARFNE
BWITE ) EHIER - BRACERKATH
EREEEOMRAEEEBFNGF
MEHE RS ERE AW E25E e
BRSNS E R 5 BB -

REENFERBEEDILIARBRAEM -
PREFE  AEBUETEFERBBA
EEBIA10% o

HA WA K W%

2023 2022

—EBZ=H — T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBET T
Management fee income EIEE WA 127,450 122,182
Credit card recharges ERFERLDH 22,433 17,748
Project income SEREN N 2,820 1,984
Government subsidies (note) BT 8 B (BT 3%) 15,709 40,130
Net exchange gain JHIE H U e 684 7,008
Income from lessees R E A ABKA 796 903
Car park income FEHUA 20,846 14,019
Others FHAh, 26,898 25,210
217,636 229,184

Note:

The amount represents government subsidies received from the PRC local
authorities for subsidising its operational activities by the Group. All of them had

no specific conditions attached.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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7 Interest and investment income 7 FERREWA
2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERZFBUWA 55,762 26,165
Investment income from structured bank HEBMRITERZRERA
deposits 18,100 —
73,862 26,165
Finance costs 8 mEMRK
2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Interest expenses on: FEFAXY :
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 124,240 101,495
— Lease liabilities —HERE 57,698 14,158
181,938 115,653
Taxation 9 BiE
2023 2022
—EZ=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBFT
The tax charge comprises: MEXZHBETIIEE
Current tax: ANEATRIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ETER 89,480 72,116
Withholding tax TR 577 663
90,057 72,779
Under provision in prior years: MEFREREE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE 1 PRI 59 40
59 40
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (note 19) EIEREIE (EH),
(BF3E19) (7,952) 6,029
82,164 78,848
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") RIEPBECEMSHE((EMEHE]D
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the FMEEMRETUEEMED - hBIHE QR
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. B R N R E S E 1 R25% ©
No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made as the REBW |PEASNEAM BT EEE RN E
Group has no assessable taxable profits arising from operations BEEERV SN QI EREELTIE
outside the PRC. B -
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Taxation (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 B ZE — T _=F + A=

T-BLFE

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

BiE ()

AERRBEXHELRS

825

5 N HoAth 2 UL

SR PRI AR M 2 H R T

2023 2022
—E-=HF —F=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F AREFTT
Profit before taxation % B Bl a1 357,713 185,421
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% RE RSB E25%:TE 2
AL 89,428 46,355
Tax effect of share of profit of a joint venture fE{GH—fEI&E 3R F] 2 FiIE
2 (6,809) 4,779)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates EEEE R ala oz IR E (77,235) (45,551)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERMBMAZ HIEZE
purpose (4,125) (9,227)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax A FAFEFHA L 2 HBEFE
purpose 9,184 5,519
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised THERARIEBEEBZREZZ 60,654 77,114
Tax effect of recognition of previously HREARERNTIBEE
unrecognised tax losses MIERE - (63)
Under provision in prior years BEFETERE 59 40
Withholding tax TEFRR 10,721 9,916
Tax effect of previously unrecognised FRIARBEROYG R ZRE 2B
temporary differences H 2 287 (476)
Tax charge for the year REEHIEX W 82,164 78,848

—E-=FEH
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 Z — T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

10 Profit for the year

10

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6 B R

AEZRNEME(GEA) FFIEA :

12

2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): EF5WE (FIFE1) -
Fees we 1,004 685
Salary and allowances e MiEBL 9,031 6,167
Bonus TEAT 18,196 9,187
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAE N ET B ALK 26 —
28,257 16,039
Other staff costs, excluding retirement TEIERARBREEMERINZ
benefits scheme contributions HAth 8 TR 187,139 173,715
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, 3R /R48 5T I FF1R2 UK
net of forfeited contributions for staff BT R 21,236 18,999
208,375 192,714
Total staff costs BETIHAAR 236,632 208,753
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A& 3,231 2,985
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BENKEREZTE
equipment 241,600 245,763
Depreciation of investment property KEMEZITE 30,782 30,782
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREEZINE 148,780 167,704
Loss allowance on expected credit losses for  J& Y BR 3¢ [2 10 & FE W FIE 2
trade and lease receivables T EEBENEERE 6,491 2,162
Expenses related to variable lease payments S A] EEHEM 37,404 14,495
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERRiBZEE
equipment 107 172
Expenses relating to low-value leases KEEEE ZBAR 1,542 1,488
Expenses relating to short-term leases REREE 2 B 437 223
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R R 2 FEXR 443,857 361,223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z — T _=F + _A=+—HIFE

11 Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 11 ES - HRUTEREEME

remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed

REBGER S LR REE QR E

pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and HKCO, are as follows: WAFEEEREFRNTEMNEOT :
2023 =E-=
Non-
Executive
Executive Directors Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
HiTES HTES BUKHTES
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung, Lau Lau Chan Chor Lam  Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas*  Kam Sen Kam Shim Ling, Amy KwongWai  Raymond Mei Han Total
EE el 2SR 258 RER AR IR REM @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR AR¥Tn AR¥Trn AR%TR
Fees we 180 142 142 135 135 135 135 1,004
Other emoluments HitB&
Salaries and other HeRAMBRT
benefits 6,481 1,275 1,275 - - - - 9,031
Bonus* TEAL* 9,098 4,549 4,549 - - - - 18,196
Retirement benefits RIKEFIF B R
schemes
contributions - 13 13 - - - - 26
Total emoluments B¢ @ 15,759 5,979 5,979 135 135 135 135 28,257
2022 —E—_=
Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
WITEE FWTEF BUFMTESR
Lau Luen Cheung
Hung,  Chan Chor Lam  Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas*  Ling, Amy  Kwong Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
Bk oty RER AR RIRX R 1 st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARE®TRT AR®TRT AR%®TT AR%TT AR%TR
Fees e 169 129 129 129 129 685
Other emoluments Hih &
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 6,167 — — — — 6,167
Bonus* TEAT* 9,187 — — — — 9,187
Total emoluments [k 15,523 129 129 129 129 16,039

* The bonus is determined having regard to the Group's and the executive

directors’ performance for each of the reporting period.

# Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the chief executive officer of the

Company.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

* AR SHEERBEAEEARNTESERS
BmEHORRMmMETE

* BEBAEENRARANEFNITE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 Z — T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

11 Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’
remuneration (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for the
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive director and independent
non-executive directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the current year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2022: Same). None of the
directors has waived any remuneration during the year (2022: Same).
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023, three of them (2022: one) are directors of the
Company whose remuneration is disclosed above and the remaining
two (2022: four) are employees of the Group, details of whose

11

%S\EﬁﬂﬁE&EEMQ
BA b R A A R R A R 32 0 R 4 AR
BZHTEEMS -

A ERRARTHERBEEES —BAIEH
TEERBYIFATESHE

NAFE  AEBTERAEELHHE
ARSI EMAREELEAMALEE
CHESHBBHE(CTE_—F  ER) -
RARFE REEERETWNHE (ZF
ZZF R cBEZEZZ=F+=A
=t+—RALEFE AEEREZSFTAT
P =R (ZEZZF —R)BAARRE
OB IMER EXHBERBTME (=2

remuneration were as follows: ZF B ARTNEEES - BEZM
FEBEHINAT
2023 2022
—EB-=F —T-=
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETF T
Employees: ’ 5 :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ #% « 7B R HAEF] 2,522 4,519
Retirement benefits scheme RORAEFIFT B3
contributions 775 399
Performance related incentive payments E1R IR M5 8¢ 287 1,253
3,584 6,171

The number of the five highest paid individuals of the Group whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

REBAEZSFATZHEHMNTUTE
:

2023 2022

—E-= —_F_
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 7T — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T % 2,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 % 7T 2 7,000,0007% 7T 2 —
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,001% 7T £ 17,500,0007% 7T 1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the two highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2022: Same).

14

BE_ZE-_=F+-RA=+—RHIEE "
AEBUERNMEETEEXFEE
ARSI EMAREELEAMALEE
SR E(CE - —F A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z — T _=F + _A=+—HIFE

12 Dividends 12

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

13 Earnings/(losses) per share 13
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Earnings/(losses) figures are calculated as follows:

B’ E
BE_ZE-_=+-_A=+—BILFE
RATARE ML BRBRFIEMNHEIRR
B(ZEZ=F 8-
BREF(FHE)
AARHEBAEBESREARBE AT
(E5318) TYIR B A T8I Mt & -

B/ (BR) BFAEMT

2023 2022
—E-=HF —F=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARETTT
Earnings/(losses) &7,/ (F8)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to RABEE ANEERRFE
owners of the Company s Fl/ (E18) 87,767 (24,441)
2023 2022
—EZ=HF T
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares BROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary LR NE T8 E
shares 1,464,449 1,464,449

The diluted earnings/(losses) per share for the year ended 31
December 2023 equals to the basic earnings/(losses) per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares to issue during the
year (2022: Same).

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

HE_Z-_=F+-_A=1+—HILFEHN
BERERAEN (BB ERTREAR
FOEE)  TYEREREE T RAEER
BELTEBR (T _—F AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 Z — T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 NE-BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment  Motor vehicles Total
G BETEER
#F  HEWERE BER#E R AE -
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
AREFT ARBFT ARBTIL ARBTFI ARBFIL ARBTFTL
Cost A
At 1 January 2022 R-B-—£-f-R 5,415,969 716,312 808,465 118,579 6,285 7,065,610
Additions RE - 11,188 - 1,288 - 12476
Disposals/write-off & /M — — (1,209 (529) — (1,738)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+-R=1-H 5415969 727,500 807,256 119,338 6,285 7,076,348
Additions RE — 14,661 — 2,382 — 17,043
Disposals/write-off HE/HE - (7,694) - (692) (387) 8773
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=1-A 5,415,969 734,467 807,256 121,028 5,898 7,084,618
Depreciation &
At 1 January 2022 R-B-—£-f-R 720397 677,863 115,237 47,669 3435 1,564,601
Provided for the year FREE 148,875 2427 65,106 8,917 438 245,763
Disposals/write-off & /M — — (1,091 (475) — (1,566)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+ZR=1-A 869,272 700,290 179,252 56,111 3873 1,808,798
Provided for the year FERRE 149,513 17,106 65,676 8,867 438 241,600
Disposals/write-off HE/HE - (7,69 — (621) (349) (8,662)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZZF+ZA=1-A 1,018,785 709,704 244928 64,357 3962 2,041,736
Net book values FHEFE
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-fA=1-A 4,397,184 24,763 562,328 56,671 1936 5,042,882
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+-f=1—H 4,546,697 27,10 628,004 63,2071 2412 5,267,550
Depreciation expense for the year includes RMB241,600,000 (2022: REEZHERZIBIELAME  BERHK
RMB245,763,000) provided for property, plant and equipment, HEH 2 BB & %8 A R #241,600,0007T
RMB30,782,000 (2022: RMB30,782,000) provided for investment (ZZ==F : AR¥245763,0007T) ' &
property and RMB148,780,000 (2022: RMB167,704,000) provided for IEYEEL 2 BHE S5 A RE 30,782,000
right-of-use assets. Depreciation expense of RMB96,032,000 (2022: T (ZZEZ=F : AR¥30,782,0007T) A K
RMB97,540,000) has been included in cost of sales, RMB250,149,000 REBEEEFLZBBELEARE
(2022: RMB272,248,000) in selling and distribution costs and 148,780,000 L(Z T = —_F : ARK
RMB74,981,000 (2022: RMB74,461,000) in administrative expenses 167,704,000L) - ERIZT AR
respectively. 96,032,000t (ZZE % : ARM

97,540,0007C) E T ASHER A - AR
250,149,000 (Z - —F : AR
272,248,0007T) B 5t ASHE R D KA R
AR¥74981,000C (ZE=-—F : ARW
74,461,0007T) EFTATTB X ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z — T _=F + _A=+—HIFE

15 Right-of-use assets 15 ERAEEE
Land Buildings Total
tith BF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET ARETR
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZE_—_F—HF—H 2,197,792 564,574 2,762,366
—E-=F
—H—H
Addition NE — 1,481,589 1,481,589
At 31 December 2023 R-ZB-_=% 2,197,792 2,046,163 4,243,955
+=B=+—H
Depreciation weE
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—AF—H 60,050 297,448 357,498
Provided for the year FREAE 68,072 99,632 167,704
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—HF—H 128,122 397,080 525,202
Provided for the year FNEAE 68,091 80,689 148,780
At 31 December 2023 R-E—-= 196,213 477,769 673,982
+=ZA=t+—H
Net book values REFEE
At 31 December 2023 R-®-= 2,001,579 1,568,394 3,569,973
+=A=+—H
At 31 December 2022 A= 2,069,670 167,494 2,237,164
+-A=+—8H

Depreciation expense of RMB18,405,000 (2022: RMB21,969,000) has
been included in cost of sales and RMB130,375,000 (2022:
RMB145,735,000) in selling and distribution costs respectively.

IER X AR 18,405,0007T (20224 = A
R#21,969,0007T) BET ASHER AR AR
#130,375,0007C (2022F : AR ¥
145,735,0007T) B 5T ASHE R $HAA ©

16 Investment property 16 REYX
RMB'000
AREFTT
Cost A
At 1 January 2022, 1 January 2023 and RZBEZ—_F—-—HA—RA ZE2-_=F—-—HF—AK
31 December 2023 —E-_=f+-_A=+—H” 1,297,555
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_%—H—H 5,128
Provided for the year FNEE 30,782
At 1 January 2023 WZE-_=%—H—H 35,910
Provided for the year FRNEE 30,782
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBE-=%+-A=+—H 66,692
Net book values IRENEE
At 31 December 2023 R=ZB=-Z=F+=H=+—H 1,230,863
At 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—_#F#+-_A=+—H 1,261,645
FRFEEEERAT —S-=FFRK 17



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %34 81 3% 3R 3% Mf 55(48)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 Z — T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

16

17
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Investment property (continued) 16 BREWE(E)
Depreciation expense of RMB30,782,000 (2022: RMB30,782,000) has S A AREE30,782,000L (=2 ==
been included in cost of sales. AR#30,782,0007T) 2 &R B & A
%N
The fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2023 is RZZZ=F+RA=+—8 &AM
approximately RMB3,168,000,000 (2022: RMB3,244,000,000). The 2N ELHAANRES,168,000,0007T (ZF
valuation of the Group's investment properties was determined by Z %+ AR¥E3,244,000,0007T) ¢ AE[E
an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and REYEZEEHBE L HERM T EETR
Advisory Limited, who holds a recognised and relevant professional ETEREBERAERAGEITHEEE ° %
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category THERTRIEETEER  WRAHS
of the investment properties being valued, at open market values. HEMBEREMEZ W RERNEE AR
miE -
As at 31 December 2022, investment property of RMB1,261,645,000 RZE-_—_F#+_-_A=+—8B ' AR¥%
was pledged to secure the Group's bank loan facilities of 1,261,645,000T 2 R EMEDWER - 1F
RMB2,240,000,000. AR 5 B X A R % 2,240,000,0007T R 17
EREE 2R
Investments in associates 17 RBEERIANRE
2023 2022
—E=F T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Unlisted, at cost FEET - HBOR 1,228,800 1,228,800
Discount arising on acquisition of additional i@ FEUE —FHEE A F]
interest in an associate in prior years HIMEREE 23R 98,416 98,416
Gain arising on deemed disposal of interest 3 [/ H & —[&Hi & A Bz M
in an associate EAx ks 11,297 11,297
Share of post-acquisition profits and other  [E(RIREER 2 & F R E M2 M
comprehensive income, net of dividends Wz - HEBRIEE 2,233,635 1,934,141
3,572,148 3,272,654
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z — T _=F + _A=+—HIFE

17 Investments in associates (continued) 17 REBERANKRE (&)
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had interests in the RIE_=FR T - —F+_A=+—
following associates: H REBERTIEEARIES#EE
Place/country of Proportion of
Form of business establishment/ Principal place of nominal value of issued capital/ Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation registered capital voting power held Principal activities
RI/ERAT ) .
BREH EBERES #%/BR TEREHY BRARE/ERRAEEL S FERERLA TEXEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—g-cE S —g-= St

Shijiazhuang Beiguo Renbai  Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a
Group Company group of companies
Limited" engaging in the
("Beiren Group”) operation of
(note a) department stores,

supermarkets, etc.

BRENEAREEARE AL hE HE HEREERBHERH
{ERA ([ AZHE)) ZEENRRAER
(FifzEa)

Beiguo Shangcheng Incorporation PRC PRC 16.05% 16.05% 16.05% 16.05%  Investment holding of a
Company Limited" group of companies
("Beiguo”) (note b) engaging in the

operation of
department stores,
supermarkets
itl?ﬁmxf ABRAT Bl wE HE HERRERBHERZ
(ML) (W&b“ SERRZRERR

Hebei Beiguo Future Mall - Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Retailing business in the
Company Limited" PRC
("Future Mall") (note ¢)

LNEEATESERE KL HE HE EHARETEER
QR (K T EE)

GED)

Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a
company engaging in
operation of
restaurants in the PRC

BEARLA ML &R PE ERERFRREE A
mZREER

Notes B 5

(a) At 31 December 2023, the Group's 60% (2022: 60%) owned subsidiary, (a) R-ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—8  2&£EEH

Wingold Limited, indirectly held equity interest of 49% (2022: 49%) in Beiren 60% (ZZFZZ6F : 60%) w2 B R T%
Group. The Group does not participate in the management of the day-to- SERAADEEFFILAEEL9% (=
day operation of the operating entities within Beiren Group. TF  49%) R KRS o AREEI A2

ERILAEEANEEERNAEEE-

(b) At 31 December 2023, Al b fBJRIR & AR A 7 (Hebei Xu Yuan Investment (b) RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H8 E&BARA
Company Limited"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Wingold AIMEZE2EWNBARTILERIREBRR
Limited, and Beiren Group held direct equity interest of 16.05% (2022: AIRIEAEE SR FHE16.05%(—F ==
16.05%) and 73.95% (2022: 73.95%) in Beiguo respectively. Among the F:16.05%) R73.95% (ZF Z 4 :
seven directors (2022: seven) in Beiguo, two (2022: two) directors were the 73.95%) It Bl M E B AN o FEJLEIA £
representatives of the Group. The Group does not participate in the +tER(CZEZZF LR)EFEF WS
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within ZECCF MB)EERAEENRE -
Beiguo. REBEWT2EERILEARNEETRNAT

EiE -

AIRPEKEERAT —S-=5%H 19
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Investments in associates (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(c) At 31 December 2023, the Group's 60% (2022: 60%) owned subsidiary,
Ample Sun Group Limited, held direct equity interest of 49% (2022: 49%) in
Future Mall. In addition, 51% (2022: 51%) equity interest of Future Mall was
being directly held by Beiguo. The Group does not participate in the
management of the day-to-day operation of the operating entities within
Future Mall.

A

The English name is translated for identification purpose only

The financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set

REEQRNRE (F)
fira : (%)

(© WZZ—=F+-RB=+—0  A£EEE
60% (Z T = =4 : 60%) S Z M B A FZE
REBERAFRFBELARTESI% (ZF
TTF A9%) ERERRARERS o LA £RTT
Bi551% (Z T4 : 51%) RAEE Bt
REERE - AEETF2EREBELRTE
BREERENABEE-

5 RXABELTZ - EHES

ERAKEBERBZHBENNT

out below:
2023 2022
—E-= —_F_
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
Total assets BEERE 15,082,354 13,690,550
Total liabilities afE8E 8,954,049 8,131,627
Net assets EEFE 6,128,305 5,558,923
Group's share of associates’ net assets REBEGEEAREEFE 3,572,148 3,272,654
Revenue A 8,384,600 7,662,538
Profit and total comprehensive income REERMEEEW=ETE
for the year 586,786 353,490
Group's share of profit and total AEEEEBEARAFE
comprehensive income of associates i M) 2 2 T 4258
for the year 308,939 182,205

Summarised financial information of material associates
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies
in conformity with those adopted by the Group.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group and it is
accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated
financial statements. The Group's equity interests in the Beiren
Group are held via certain partially owned subsidiaries of the Group.

ERBELNRAZHBENBE
BEAASEEARERF ZMBEENBE
BT - DTHBEMBMBZRRBZ R
BlzMBHREIN 25 BRIEREAKRE
B —HH SRR

EAEBRAEEE -EANBHEQF
ERAEDENGEAMBIRERAR - A&
BRI AEBHEETEBE T AEERF
BRI EENM B R BRE ©
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17

Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)

Beiren Group

The principal activities of the Beiren Group are the operation of
department stores and supermarkets in the PRC. It was also
engaged in auto trading business and sales were made to three PRC
companies (“the Debtors”) in prior years. The ultimate beneficial
owner of the Debtors has provided personal guarantees over the
Debtors’ outstanding amounts owing to the Beiren Group (the
“Guarantor”). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Debtors defaulted on settlement of trade balances due to the
Beiren Group (“Trade Receivables”) and the Beiren Group has
ceased trading with the Debtors and the entire auto trading
business since July 2019. Legal actions have been taken by the
Beiren Group to recover the outstanding Trade Receivables.

Meanwhile, the Group became aware from public sources that the
Guarantor has been detained by the relevant local authority in
Hebei province in relation to alleged illegal activities in one of his
businesses. Based on public notices issued by the local authority in
Hebei, the Group noted that all companies (including the Debtors)
and assets which are located in Hebei Province that are directly or
indirectly owned by the Guarantor have been seized by the local
authority pending further investigations.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, after obtaining an
understanding from management of the Beiren Group in respect of
the actions taken to recover the Trade Receivables from the Debtors
and taking into consideration advice from the Group's external legal
advisers, the Group had concluded the likelihood of recovering any
amount from the Debtors or the Guarantor as remote and made a
loss allowance of expected credit loss, net of deferred tax credit,
against the full amount of overdue Trade Receivables due from the
Debtors (“Full Impairment”) for the purpose of recognising the
share of results of the Beiren Group as at 31 December 2019.

The impact of this Full Impairment on the Group's share of losses of
associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to non-
controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively, while its impact on the Group's carrying value of
the investments in associates, equity attributable to owners of the
Company and the non-controlling interests as at that date
amounted to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0
million respectively.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

17 RBEQRANRKRE (&)

EXABERRAZMBERME (B

HANEEH

EAEETLEXEBANTREEEAEER
Bh TRBEBFEREAIEESE
%o XR=FPERR ([EHADETH
EBERAZKKESZHEACHREBA
REEIASE Z AR HEARER (42
®’AD BEZZT—NF+ZA=+—H
LHEE  BEBARGEERNIEAREZ
Bom((RERRDIEESRY LA
SEE_Z-NFLAREFEILTREBA
MZHREMEREREZER - LAKER
EHERITEIE N AR E RN EWARIE -

R AEBERARREBEAERARYS
WMERELEMEP—EAXBPREIREE
BMsoitE BRE RE - RiITIEAE
ERBMHOAE ARBHMEBERALN
EHERSIREEANZHLAR (REER
AN) REEEEBREM DL BDETEE —
HERE -

RBE-FT-NAF+_A=+t—BLF
B THRIEASEEERBHEHILEBAK
Ol W AR TR NITE  TEERAEE
SMERERERMNBERE AEERARE
BARERAMBFIRA AT GEIERE &
RN _ZE-NAF+A=+—HBEMHI
AEBEZEE  AEBERILERKEEA
BHEYREEE B EEB R RE
1ERE (HRREERRES) ([2FRME]) -

PHEREHAEBRBEE_T—NF+=A
“t+—HILEFEREBERRGE #E
AEREBEIEERESELRBRNZE
DRIBARESI24ABE T ARM4874
BETRARKEIC0EET  MAHARE
ERZAHBERARMNKEREEE &
RAVEE AEIGHETSIA M IR IE RS F
ZoRAANREI24R 8T - ARE487 4
BEILTMARKIZB0EET
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Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)

Beiren Group (continued)

To date, the Group understood from management of the Beiren
Group that there has not been any progress made regarding their
legal actions taken against the Debtors as the criminal case against
the Guarantor taken by the relevant authority is still pending.
Management of the Beiren Group has been maintaining regular
contact with the relevant local authority regularly to follow up the
development of the case against the Debtors, however, there has
not been any concrete reply from the authority. The Guarantor was
still being detained by the relevant local authority and there has
been no additional information or development in relation to the
recoverability of the Trade Receivables due from the Debtors.
As such, there has not been any progress made in terms of
recovering the outstanding trade receivables nor able to obtain any
further financial information of the Debtors and the Guarantor.
During late 2023, the Group obtained legal advice from an
independent external PRC lawyer on the recoverability of the Trade
Receivables. The external lawyer considered that the likelihood of
recoverability of any balance of Trade Receivables is very low. As at
31 December 2023, the Group considered that the Full Impairment
against the Trade Receivables remains as the best estimate of
recoverability based on the information currently available and on
the advice of the external lawyer.

The Company will continue, wherever possible and practicable, to
implement the measures and/or actions to monitor the
development of the situation, including but not limited to regular
communication with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group and
the designation of the Group’s Chief Financial Officer to work
closely with management of the Beiren Group. The Group will also
communicate with the major shareholder of the Beiren Group, which
holds 51% equity interest in the Beiren Group at the holding
company level, to explore and consider different options to
minimize any loss and damage to both of us as shareholders of the
Beiren Group.

17

REEQTNERE (K)
BEAME AR ZHEERRE (H)

A EE (&)

BERE  AEERIASEERERS
A BRARERHERANTERLFD
EEES Al ASBHEBALTZ
ERTHREEMER - LAEBERE
—HRREEBARGZEREHEEH

ERRFEE HERRIERTMNELD
B EBRADBAERMMIT AFIME - B

U5 765 A B UK B TR Y mT MK (B 14 7 D 3 R
SNER R ERER - At pHEREE
& Ui B SR SR RS ﬁ?}*/\&#"%/\f{ﬁ‘iﬁ—
THHEEM LY BEMER -R T ==
FR ﬁ%lﬂﬁdﬁ?ﬁ”&ﬁ%lﬁﬁ’]—ﬂ&@liﬂi
BHEBIIN R REANERER o SMEPR
B ER A% - Yo W BR TR AR AT SR RE &0 AT B 1
FEER-R_F_=F+-_A=1+—8"
ERBAABNER RINBRENER
T AEERSRURENZFRED S
AR E MR & ERE -

ARRGBEEERERATZERT &K
BB R SITBAERERER  BF
BARKEREIEARENTZRREA
SEREEMHAEER  NRIEAEEE
BETUAE - ARETFEEZERAR

ﬁi%*ﬁ’ib)\ﬁlm%ﬂﬂéﬁ'}ib}\%@

TERRETER R LZEETRE
B URERIEHERIEARERED

ERHERRIEE -

2023 2022

—E-= —E-F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTIT

Current assets MENVE B 7,786,363 6,481,664
Non-current assets IEREBEE 7,285,415 7,196,931
Current liabilities mE B & 7,884,764 6,974,552
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 1,065,574 1,154,995
Net assets AEFE 6,121,440 5,549,048
Net assets attributable to owner WEANEBLZEEFE 4,996,253 4,666,316
Non-controlling interests JEVE R R 1,125,187 882,732
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17

Investments in associates (continued) 17

Summarised financial information of material associates

REEQTNERE (K)
EAME AR Z M EREE (H)

(continued)
Beiren Group (continued) IANEEH(E)
2023 2022
—E-=HF — T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F AREFTT
Revenue YA 8,351,103 7,642,410
Profit and total comprehensive income RERF R 2 a8
for the year 585,432 354,070
Less: Profit and total comprehensive income i : JEE IR E m BIG AN FE
for the year attributable to A R 2 AR
non-controlling interests 240,859 117,757
Profit and total comprehensive income HEABERERE RN RE2E
for the year attributable to owner Wz e 344,573 236,313
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership A& E AL A EEIZ L FI EH
interest in Beiren Group BB 2w 49% 49%
168,841 115,794
Add: Further interest of Beiren Group's e REEEMME AR ERE
certain subsidiaries directly held by BEZIEAERET
the Group's other subsidiaries B R B — 139,421 66,700
The Group's share of profit and NEBEEIEIEAREREE
other comprehensive income of i R K2 B M 2 T U A
Beiren Group for the year 308,262 182,494
Dividend declared from Beiren Group RENIEASEHARER 2
to the Group during the year 5k E 7,258 4,655

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Beiren

RERB R FBIREAT ERE AL ASEBZ
NEESEZREER AN BEMEE

Group which recognised in the consolidated financial statements: K
2023 2022
—E=-= - —
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT AREBFT
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable to ~ #HB AEIEIL AEE 2
owners EEFE 4,996,069 4,666,316
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership ~ ANEE AL AL FIEE
interest in Beiren Group WA 49% 49%
2,448,074 2,286,494
Add: Further interest of Beiren Group's N AR E E A B A A
certain subsidiaries directly held by BEERBZIASEET
the Group's other subsidiaries BB~ ml— s 1,120,642 981,218
Carrying amount of the Group's interestin ~~ AREERIL AEE#EZ 2
Beiren Group BREE 3,568,716 3,267,712

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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17 Investments in associates (continued) 17 REBEZLEQXATNRE (B
Information of an associate that is not individually material BRIFERZHEATNER
2023 2022
—E-=fF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBETF T
The Group's share of profit/(loss) and other A& B 15 & 5, (F18) &
comprehensive income/(expense) Eﬁﬂi@”& %=/ (F%) 677 (289)
Dividend declared from this associate ZHE N ZEIRKRE 2,187 —
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ﬁ?’% N NG X
this associate Z BREAE 3,432 4,942
18 Investment in a joint venture 18 R—EEELENKRE

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had interest in the
following joint venture:

Proportion of
Place of nominal value of

establishment/

issued capital held

i

=ER-FT_F+A=1—

B AEESANIAELE -

Proportion of
voting power

Name of entity Form of business structure operation by the Group held Principal activities
FEERFDRT
"EEE EREBEt R/ S BRAEELSH FERRELD  FEXH
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza  Sino-foreign equity PRC 50% 50% Property holding and
Co., Ltd." joint venture leasing
PENBHTESERAR PIHEBRERHE FE WESEREE

The English name is translated for identification purpose only

" WX AEERBZ - EHES

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of SELERERSEAR
accounting:
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT
Cost of unlisted investment in a —HEEREFELIMREZ
joint venture R AR 372,082 372,082
Share of post-acquisition losses and FE(R BB 2 B 1R &
other comprehensive expenses, Hin2EMAZ - HIRRE
net of dividends (7,627) (12,025)
364,455 360,057
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18 Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18
The summarised financial information related to the Group's interest
in the joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with uniform
accounting policies in conformity with those adopted by the Group.

R—EEELRNIRE (K)
BBARERAACE Y B2 MHEN
BRI T c ATHBEREERARAED
EIMBRERLIZEHE  RIRMERE
BB RH B RY -

2023 2022
—E-=5F =S
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE 765,578 818,771
Current assets mENEE 142,160 115,682
Current liabilities nBEE 178,828 214,339
Net assets EEFE 728,910 720,114
The above amounts of assets and liabilities  FilEEMBELEEEN T
include the followings: HE
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEED 92,698 92,264
Current financial liabilities nEemas (TREEME
(excluding trade and other payables) X N E A FE A RR0E) 145,000 184,756
2023 2022
—Eg-= —E__F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Revenue A 195,952 169,119
Profit for the year REEFA 54,476 38,234
Dividend income recognised by the Group ~ FRAKEE R 2R EWA
during the year 22,840 31,105
The Group's share of profit and other REBELEBERERM K
comprehensive income of the joint Hfth 2 W s
venture 27,238 19,117

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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18

19

126

Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18
The above profit and other comprehensive income for the year

R—EEEERNERE (&)
B EARFERF R R E RS RIEAT

includes the following: HE ¢
2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
Depreciation and amortization e Ry 37,187 37,193
Interest income FLE U A 2,022 1,378
Interest expense FMEZH 5,560 7,052
Income tax expense Frigfis H 22,439 17,048
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the [t B s B R R Wk PR

carrying amount of the investment in a joint venture recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

R—EARELENKREZIREENR

2023 2022
—EC=F —ZF=-=
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFTT
Net assets of the joint venture AEECEEFE 728,910 720,114
Proportion of the Group's ownership REEGERRE 2 B LLH
interest 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment  AEBEREEDENRE 2
in a joint venture FREE 364,455 360,057
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 19 EEZEHBEBEE (BE)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

AT RBECHIBESRRMBREENZS

financial reporting purposes: o
2023 2022
—E-= B F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
Deferred tax assets BEFRIBEE 26,081 5,298
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (67,198) (54,367)
(41,117) (49,069)
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19 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities

19

EREREEE(BE) (F)
UTAERBZTERCHELERARE

recognised and movements thereon during the year: IR EBEFERNES :
Distributable
profits of PRC
subsidiaries,  Accelerated
associates and tax
ajoint venture  depreciation Tax losses Others Total
B A ]
BENAR
—BRELEZ
AAEEF MEHBERE BEEE Hity wEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTFT AR¥ETFT
At 1 January 2022 RZZ-—=F—A—H (43,258) 4,975 4,000 (8,757) (43,040)
(Charged)/credited to profit 18z (k) & A
or loss (note 9) (FEE9) (7,700) 254 — 1,417 (6,029)
At 31 December 2022 i ——
+=ZA=+—8 (50,958) 5,229 4,000 (7,340) (49,069)
(Charged)/credited to profit ~ M8z (HIBR),/ & A
or loss (note 9) (FEE9) (9.839) 5,641 15,142 (2.992) 7,952
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F
+-A=+—H (60,797) 10,870 19,142 (10,332 41,117)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate ranging from 5% to RECEMSHE BT N\F—HA—
10% is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by the PRC BEXFEMBAR BEARR—fEE

subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation of RMB9,839,000 (2022: RMB7,700,000)
in respect of distributable profit of the PRC entities amounting of
RMB338,852,000 (2022: RMB279,773,000) has been provided during
the year ended 31 December 2023. At the end of the reporting
period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was RMB991,377,000 (2022:
RMB949,026,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

—E-=FEH

BEREMS RN 7RSS REBEN F5%E
10%EMNFHE - REZ2 T -_=F+=-A4
=t+t—HLEFE RPEETRADIREF
AR#338,852,0007T (ZEZZF : AR
279,773,0007T) B 1E i A R #9,839,0007T
(ZZE=—=F : AR¥7,700,0007T) &I i&
TIBREE RB|EHR B RARERD
K2 RFEENEREEZELIARR AR

EFRIBRE - 8% A ARK991,377,0007T
—ZT - —F: AR¥949,026,0007T) ° B

NEZRRBERRBEMNEE  ARAEHE
B HEs SR ERBENRRE - ME
BEBFRAETSER ARG KRR -
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19 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued) 19 EEREBEEE (AE)(H)
At 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses of RZE-_=F+_A=+—H Xx&£EEH
approximately RMB992,025,000 (2022: RMB816,111,000) available for REARIBERELN R ARE992,0250007T
offset against future profits. For the year ended 31 December 2023, (ZZT==F : AR™816,111,0007T) - 7]
deferred tax asset of RMB15,142,000 was recognised for tax losses FAEREBERR - HE-Z _7¢+:
because the Group reviewed the profit forecasts of relevant entity R=+—BLEFE AR EBEERE
and determined that it is probable that taxable profits will be I & E AR 15,142,0007T - J%-EZK%
available and the tax losses can be utilised. The unrecognised tax =25 BIAERE B RS A0 0m A TE RN - 30 78 T Rl B
losses arising from subsidiaries operated in the PRC will expire as FAERERB G A B Al B AT IEE 18 o £
follows: B 48 & B BT JB 1 B BE AR M SR TR SRR 1B 5 18
&R THIE R EH
Tax losses expiring in REBRIYPZFH
2023 2022
—EZ=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARETTT
2023 —E-=# — 127,709
2024 —EZNEF 100,719 100,719
2025 :giﬁﬂf 100,894 100,894
2026 ZEZRF 207,217 207,217
2027 :gfti 279,572 279,572
2028 —ZZN\F 303,623 —
992,025 816,111
During the year ended 31 December 2023, approximately HE_T-_=F+_A=+—HLFE "
RMB127,709,000 (2022: RMB115,106,000) tax losses expired. HARME127,709,000 (ZEZZF : AR

#£115,106,0007T) WFREEE D 2 H -
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20 Trade and other receivables 20 FEWERFR H it FE WK IE
2023 2022
—ECZ=%F —F-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARETTT
Trade receivables JE U BR 7K 27,093 25,929
Lease receivables T2 & EW I8 67,244 74,862
94,337 100,791
Less: Loss allowance on expected credit B TEEMEEEIE 2 EEEE
losses (9,148) (2,657)
85,189 98,134
Prepayments FERTFRIE 299 257
Deposits paid [=ANE & 5,353 5,352
Value Added Tax (“VAT") receivable FEUEER ([HEER]) 68,670 88,457
Others receivables H b fE W FRIE 62,988 46,783
137,310 140,849
Less: Loss allowance on expected credit B BEEEEB EERE
losses (22,253) (22,253)
115,057 118,596
200,246 216,730
Less: Non-current portion B IEREN R (5,353) (5,352)
194,893 211,378
The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash and REBABEEELNZEHETZEZBE
through debit card or third-party payment platform. Its major trade ERIEXLRIBE=ZFTRFE BT - K&
receivables arising from third-party payment platform sales are EEERKEFRE - —EMmEIE
normally settled in one to two business days and lease receivables AREIME=FRHRTEHE K —KN30
are normally settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged KRR E B E & EUGRIE - AT R ENER
analysis of trade and lease receivables net of allowance for expected AR E RWEIE (IR TEREE B R R E
credit losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period presented (B BREBEREHRERZEHZERD
based on invoice date: o
2023 2022
—E=-= - —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREBFT
0-30 days OHZ30H 67,373 56,742
31-60 days 31THZ60H 11,165 20,944
61-90 days 61HZE90H 2,637 6,696
over 90 days BimH90H 4,014 13,752
85,189 98,134
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20

21

22

23

130

Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 FEWERAKR H b fE W FIE ()
Movement in the provision for expected credit loss on trade EWRFEHEEEREFAEZY
receivables
2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
At 1 January ‘—H—H 2,657 495
Provision for expected credit loss EHRREMEEEERE
recognised 6,491 2,162
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 9,148 2,657
The fair value of the trade and other receivables approximates to JFEE LT B SR e L A JRE LA R IR B R EL BR T
their carrying values. (EVEEZ
Inventories 21 ®E&
2023 2022
—E-= —_F_
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFTT
Merchandise held for resale HEFEEEMm 93,877 109,471
Amount due to a joint venture 22 EN—BMEELERE

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amount due to a joint venture
represented accrued rental and management fee payable to a joint
venture. The amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Amounts due from associates 23
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amount due from associates
represented dividend receivables from Beiren Group and Beiguo as

well as a loan receivable from Beiguo, which was unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

REB_=FR-_F_—_F+_A=t+t—

B EBN—HAELEZS

IE@%HHEV

N—HAECEZHSRERE - b
RELR  RERANRERKEER -

FE W 2 F FE

REB_=FR-_F_—_F+-_A=1+t—
B - s AR SRR B I AR KL

B ) FE U % B LA R AL B A R IR B 3R
TREFEE ©

EEA R BRER

HE
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24 Cash and cash equivalents 24 RERBREEEY
At 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents include comprised RZZEZ=F+-_RA=+—8 HaEkR
mainly short-term fixed deposits with original maturity within three SEBYEERERRITMISNEL (F
months and carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from FIENTFO0IERESI9E)(ZE__F : F
0.35% to 5.19% per annum (2022: 0.75% to 5.85% per annum). MENF0.75EE5.85E) WRERER =EA

M B 2 52 B E BT 5K -

Cash and bank balance were denominated in the following Re RPITHEFUTINESHE -
currencies:
2023 2022
—ECZ=%F —F=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F AREFTT
RMB ARE 2,111,407 1,490,300
US Dollars ("US$") ES(E ) 91,283 86,101
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") B (Erxl) 40,136 32,696
2,242,826 1,609,097
25 Structured bank deposits 25 HRMBITER
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into HE_Z-_=F+_A=1T—HLFE "
structured bank deposits agreements with the banks in the PRC. The RNEE EAREIRITR] LA B IEIRITFR
structured bank deposits were principle-protected and the ik o RAMBSEEERITER - EF(
annualized rate of return was linked to indices, exchange rates and Wes R EXLREmERHAIE -
commodity prices. The actual annualized rate of return was in the BERFCREENT17%E34% 2 B
range of 1.7% to 3.4% and with maturity periods ranging from 14 BAHARR R14RZE6E A o
days to 6 months.
2023 2022
—E-= —_==_—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBT T
Structured bank deposits EERITER 580,800 —
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26 Trade and other payables 26 ENERRRHEMENRE

2023 2022

—B-=fF Tz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Trade payables FEATBR K 45,816 47,548
Construction payables JERT T2 RRIB 3,686 252,516
Concessionaire sales payables I EEEE KA 425,562 325,970
Refundable prepaid card deposits REEN KRS 125,623 139,191
Rental deposits received S ERS 221,658 204,819
Accrued expenses FEstER 69,880 73,417
VAT payable JE - 35 B 718 6,937 7
Interest payables A A2 3,856 2,940
Others Hit 56,338 48,217
959,356 1,094,625

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables date at the end

AT AIREREHRERASYEMNES

of the reporting period presented based on invoice date: B BRI D AT

2023 2022

—E=-= —_=__
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETTT
0-30 days 0HZE30H 36,451 32,825
31-60 days 31THZE60H 3,008 5,898
61-90 days 61HZE0H 1,206 1,800
over 90 days BiE90H 5,151 7,025
45,816 47,548

FER AR R BN R M E RA 2 T 19
EEHIANEERAE4SH - AEER
BEUWBRREZRK - BRAAENR
REBEMR AT -

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire
sales payables is 45 days from invoice date. The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit timeframe.

132

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %z 4 B 7§ 3§ % [} 55(4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z — T _=F + _A=+—HIFE

27 Bank borrowings 27 SRITEE
2023 2022
—ECZ=%F —F=
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFTT
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans and  #R1TE ERRITE KA
are analysed as: WIRA T 4T
Secured, variable rate and denominated BHEM  FERAARK
in RMB e 3,278,000 2,240,000
Carrying amount repayable based on RAENTEEABRS B IERE
contractual repayment dates: RAREE :
Within one year —F R 40,000 1,120,000
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRETEBME
two years 60,000 1,120,000
More than two years, but not exceeding MEREBTNEB=F
three years 80,000 —
More than three years, but not exceeding = FRENEBUF
four years 100,000 —
More than four years, but not exceeding MERETERAF
five years 140,000 —
Over five years iR hE 2,858,000 —
3,278,000 2,240,000
Less: Amount due within one year shown B IARBEBER—FR
under current liabilities BB 2 FRIE (40,000) (1,120,000)
Amount due after one year —F BB I8 3,238,000 1,120,000
The effective interest rate of the borrowings was at 3.70%-3.80% BEERAEBFFE370%-3.80%(=F
(2022: 4.31%—4.41%) per annum. T TF 1 431%4.41%) °
On 26 December 2022, the Group entered into a new secured loan RZBEZZF+ZAZ+XAE AEEHHA
agreement in respect of a RMB3,300 million 15-year term loan RER -2 ARKEI00E8ETHTHFH
facility with a syndicate of banks. The RMB3,300 million facility was ERRERI THNEERERGE
fully drawn down on é January 2023 and part of which was used to K3, 30051%735?%{55’\_ E_=F—H
repay in full the RMB2,240 million outstanding project loan. NEREER - BOARDEEE A
E%Z,MOEE?EZ?HE%&IE BEM -
For detail of the pledge of assets, please refer to note 38. EAEEERFRNFE  S208ME38 -
HRFEEMERAE —S-=FFH 133
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for the year ended 31 December 2023 E| &£ — % —

28 Lease liabilities 28 HEEE
2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
At 1 January “n—HA—H 188,407 288,928
Addition NE 1,481,589 —
Less: DA
Lease payments HENK (115,824) (114,679)
Interest expense FMEHE 57,698 14,158
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 1,611,870 188,407
2023 2022
—E-= —_F_—
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFTT
Within a year —F R 45,809 105,447
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRENBRARET
five years 221,512 82,960
After five years hFE 1,344,549 —
1,611,870 188,407
In 2023, the cash outflow related to principal elements of lease RZZ2-=F HEEEEsA A LHE

liabilities and finance costs were RMB58,126,000 (2022:
RMB100,521,000) and RMB57,698,000 (2022: RMB14,158,000)

respectively.

29 Contract liabilities

KABENBESREDA ABARE
58,126,000t (Z T = =_F : AR¥
100,521,0007T) & A R #57,698,000 7T
(ZE=Z=F : AR 14,158,0007T) °

29 EHERE

2023 2022

—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBFT

Loyalty points under loyalty reward AR S BT 80 R R

programmes B 10,723 8,163
Unredeemed gift certificates AABZEE 2,945 1,528
13,668 9,691
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29 Contract liabilities (continued) 29 SXEE(E)
Loyalty points under loyalty
reward programmes
BBREAFETHEBRBES
2023 2022
—E-= B
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT AREBTF T
Revenue recognised out of the contract FHNEHNEERER KA
liabilities at the beginning of the year 9,691 12,260
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HAEREHEBESBENTEN —KRE
liabilities recognised are as follows: AR
(a) Loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes (a) BHEBAEBETHEFARBES
Under the Group's customer loyalty reward programmes, REAEEZ BHERET 28
customers who participate in the loyalty programmes can earn BB ECEEAIRE -T2
reward point in proportion to every dollar of their spending. BESEIZLARBES - EERM
For every 5,000 points earned from cosmetic products and b & E @ B BN 5,000 & IE(E
every 10,000 points earned from non-cosmetic products, AR E M B BRENAY 10,000 ¢ AIIRE
customers can redeem gift certificates from basic conversion REHFHEEES 5 AARE250
rate with face value of RMB250 and RMB50 respectively, which TTRARESOTZES A BRA
can be redeemed for goods or services offered at the retail BREESREHZEmRE - K
premises. Rewards points earned has an expiry period of one M ESR—FHERER -
year.
(b) Unredeemed gift certificates (b) KREBZES
The Group sells gift certificates to customers who redeem AEEHEEAFTER mMEEA
them for goods and services offered at the retail premises. FRESHNEESMEH C ER
The gift certificates are non-refundable and valid for one year KARTS o B ARIERFR - WHEER
from the date of issue. HiE—FRNBE -
The Group applied the practical expedient and does not disclose REBEERERAIMTHNEERE kI
the information relating to the remaining performance obligations EREERTHEHFHE—FRIUAT 28
that have original expected duration of one year or less. THERAEFEB2ER -
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of 30 EFRKMEATR—BRFERBRRZ
subsidiaries I

FRPEREARRAF

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the amount was unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

—E-=FEH

R ZFR B =F+=RF=+—
B ZREAEER - 2B RARERE
{

B

= ©

Jiil3
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Share capital 31 BAE
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are as follows: RABIRAZ EBFHBNOT :
Number of
shares Amount
ROEE MIE
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each EHRE{E0.005/8 JT /) & i Ak
Authorised: SETERA
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—_F#—HF—8"
and 31 December 2023 —E-—F+-_A=+—H8BK
—E_=F+-A=+—H 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R IR
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 R-_E-_—_F—H—H -
and 31 December 2023 —E-_F+-A=+—-HBEK
—E-_=F+=-A=+—H 1,464,448,500 7,322
RMB'000
AREFTT
Shown in the financial statements as RMB at RIEBZZFR-_FZ=F+=H
31 December 2022 and 2023 =+ —ERBBRERAAREEZT] 6,291

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during both years.

Statutory surplus reserve and capital reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation, provided that
such reserve fund is maintained a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital.

The capital reserve represented deemed contribution from Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International”), a former
holding company of the Company in prior years, that certain loan
interest payables were waived by Lifestyle International and not
recharged to the Company and its subsidiaries prior to the listing of
the Company in 2016.

32

RREFE - AR B SREAEANBARIL
BBE  DENBEEAQFMERLHES -

EEBBRLABRERERRE

RIBPBEINERE D ENRBER AR
BE - AR A B A RZA R P B
BREDEEMBRER T R BRARBR
B Z10%BEEEERBABEEER
WERED M EARNS0% < EERBATE
SR AFRAAEFENER(WA) @ I
RAENMEBITERRER  AIIREZ
ZRBESRERBETMERN25% AL -

EARBRANBEFENGEREREGR
REN([FEER D (KRR E ZATZERAR)
ZREEE - BE T RSN SERE
BER#AL  URARBAR_FT—REFLT
Y EEBETARBREMBAR -
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33 Leases

33

The Group as lessee
The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for all leases except
for short-term and low-value leases.

HE

REBEREEAA
AEBECHAMBHENEREEE
HHREEEEERI -

2023 2022

—EBZ=H — T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBET T

Minimum lease payments paid for REHAMEEEEEENZ
short-term and low-value leases =IEBERA

Leasehold land and buildings HE T REF 1,357 1,030
Other assets HEMEE 622 681
1,979 1,711

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred
RMB37,404,000 (2022: RMB14,495,000) contingent rents which was
based on certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases (fixed rent only) which fall due as follows:

BE-_Z-_=F¢+-_A=+—A1FE -
REEZRBESTEDLINHARES A
AR¥37,4040000 (ZE=Z=F : ARME
14,495,0007T) °

RB|ERR  AEERTAIHEHLEHEE
ZHAEARKEBEERE(RREER
&) R T 5 F BB

2023 2022

—E-= ==
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARBTTT
Within one year —FR 1,352 1,302
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFELF (BEEERT) 1,440 1,717
2,792 3,019

The above commitments represent commitments for leasing
residential properties amounting to RMB1,719,000 (2022:
RMB2,261,000) and other assets amounting to RMB1,073,000 (2022:
RMB758,000).

Lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for short-
term and low-value leases of residential properties and other assets
which represented machineries. Rental payables are predetermined
at fixed amounts except for certain lease of which contingent rental
are charged based on certain percentage of sales. Leases are
generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to three years
(2022: one year to three years) and rentals are fixed for terms
ranging from one year to three years (2022: one year to three years).

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

FHiAEAEEMERERAEIFAR
1,719,000 (Z 2 =ZZ=F : AR¥
2,261,0000) R EMEESZF AR
1,073,0007T (=& = — 4 : A R¥758,000
JL) °

HEFBEEASEREHIEEERERE
EMERHEMEE (AR) BN ZHES -
MEMNzBSAEEEBRENSRE BT
—LRIBHERE T B O MRS A
TOEL - BH—RIZEEM—==F (=

T _F—E=F)HGE HEEERE
—E=F (T F: —E=F)ETE -
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34

35
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Leases (continued)
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with

33

HE (&)

AEBER/EHEAA

RBEHR  AEECRBEFITHNAR

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: =EBEFBEWOT :

2023 2022

—E-=fF —_F--
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET R AREFTT
Within one year —F R 284,524 238,756
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERNF (BIEEEMTE) 480,215 466,511
Over five years BilAF 60,222 67,880
824,961 773,147

Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to
eight years.

Capital and other commitments

HAO—RZEEMH—ZEN\FiHHE -

34 ERRHMEAE

2023 2022
—E=-= —ET-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®ETFTT
Capital and other expenditure in respect of B ] RPN 4R A B TR E
acquisition of property, plant and BE2BBEBEANE  KE
equipment contracted for but not [ BERREMF
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 5,903 413
Capital risk management 35 EXEBERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of structured bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

AEEEBHEAR

N = =W PV
BREERSAELE

NHERAEE B8

R & B BB KA

Aigth REMERHKEDR - 8B E—

FEML  AEEZ

BRI LEED -

IEfg

AEBZEARBRERITEE - MRS
BUERTER RERREFBVWRAR
AHE ANELED (BREETRAE - f#H

RARE ) -

ARREEEHRIEARRERE - tERZIR

#Hz—#5

BREXHEBEZAR - REARFESEZ
2 AEEFBEBRNRE  BITH
B Bfn BRE R BEITH BB RIR A ER

AFEHERE AR

e
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36 2®MIA

36 Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments SRIAER
2023 2022
—E-=5F —EF -
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Financial assets SBMEE
Financial assets measured at amortised BHRENATEZSREE
cost (including cash and cash (BEReRELEFED)
equivalents) 2,486,884 1,846,107
Financial assets measured at fair value BAFEFAEE
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MRAFESHABRD 2
TREE 580,800 —
3,067,684 1,846,107
Financial liabilities sRmEas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised BEENATEZ2MAE
cost 5,906,071 3,561,747
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBEBREEEHRBEE

The Group's major financial instruments include structured bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, amount due to a joint venture, bank borrowings
and amount due from associates. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is RMB, in which most of its transactions are
denominated. The functional currency of the subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong is HK$, in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

The Group has certain foreign currency denominated bank balances
at the end of each reporting period and details of which are
disclosed in respective notes.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

FEBTESRIABREABILRTE
R RITEBRRAD - BUIRR R E M E
WORRIR ~ FEA BR R M EL A JE AN R0 - BT
—HAEERENIER - RITHEE A &Y
BRRIFIE - REERTAFHBESSH
HHE - HL S ST AMEE s Rk KR
BEEERBZEREN T -BEEEGE
BREEZERB - AR KRS 800
PREUEE 1

ExmE
ARARRARPEEENHB AR ZEEE
BRARYE  BRRIDRHUARKE
B REELENNBRRZNEERR
BT BERABARBIAETLHEE
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Financial instruments (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk (continued)
The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of US$ and HK$. The

36

£RMIEA (&)

@ T AEER (&)

EHm b (&)

AEEXZEHETRETHBEER

carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated 2o NEIRERR  AEBUINEHESE
monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows: WMEEREENT :
2023 2022
—EZZ=F —T-—
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETF T
Assets BE
us$ eV 91,283 86,101
HKS BT 40,136 32,696

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 5% (2022: 5%) in exchange rate of US$ and HK$
against RMB, while all other variables are held constant. 5% (2022:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to the key management personnel and represents the
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for a 5%
(2022: 5%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where RMB weakens
against the relevant foreign currency. Where RMB strengthens
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the amounts below
would be negative.

REEIRES I MmINEEOD IR - AT B

BESEHEINERR
MEAS AR -

TRANEAEBRETRABTHLARKEZ

FEE =< R BE 1 3R 5%

B M ATA &

T F 5% AR
BT 2 BUK

[ o5%(ZZE=—F:5%) REEERAR

WEPERINE R FT A 2 BURE - W RE
BEHINERETRESBEE) 2 71(H - &
RESNERERLIBINEIBEERIE
B WREMEHARZS (T F:
5%) HNEETE RS ENFHRME - WAREK R
BRAINETK  BITRMIZ EBRTE

PRGN - AR Z BRSNS L7t
AleHFNENEERSFERR 2ZE
BTRAIBFEREH -

2023 2022
—E-= T

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®BTR AR¥EFIT

US$ against RMB ETHRARE 3,423 3,229

HK$ against RMB BT H AR 1,505 1,226

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

ERERR - ANFEB Z ARk

£ RER
LB o

C URRE 3 AT I AR E B S
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36

Financial instruments (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits (2022: fixed-rate bank deposit). The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to the Group's
variable-rate bank borrowings (2022: variable-rate bank borrowings).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowings for construction
purpose) at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably
possible change taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. A 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for variable-rate balances when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The Group’s sensitivity to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant after taking into account the impact of the tax
and finance costs capitalised in construction in progress and
properties under development are as follows:

36 TRT A (&)

T EER (F)

FIE 7

7R £2 (BT 3 B B E B KR 1T I k2 X R
MERBR(ZE-__F: BEMNXRITE
) e REBETREE RS REN KRR - Ty
BERAKEIHNETRTEE( T
FOFBAERRITEE) c AEERFLE
EAAIR RS R EER o A BIRE e
MERER - W FEEEEEEIHEAN X
[z o

AEBUBESRENERR ZBRE - 5
RIBRREARRITEE (TRESTRT
BEERERD) FXRAR UEREFF
AR B L ENESET  TRE2F4H
BRE - ERAEBEEABRIERFIE
BB SOEESE(— T — —4F : 50AHE
BB AR EE RS WRERERE
BHFERAEEBEHNTH EMBE
MBI KEERERRERT
BRERPVEERABRERINTE
% AEERSHREPRY T ERBRE
JER N

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2023 2022
—Eg-= —E_F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARET T
(Decrease)/increase in post-tax profit for FRRBEEF GRD), i
the year
— as a result of increase in interest rate — BRFE EFH (12,293) (8,400)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — AR AR T[E 12,293 8,400
AEGEREERAT —S-=44#H 141
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Financial instruments (continued) 36 €WMIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SR T RER (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEm B R A E
The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the RZZ_=F+A=+—8 KEER}
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31 HFEAREBITHEEMZRS AR D ER
December 2023 in relation to each class of recognised financial PRIEEEY 2 &ZaE 8RR - EBEREH
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the BIRRKRMMZEEE 2 BREE ©
consolidated statement of financial position.
Trade receivables and lease receivables JEWIR R I E fEH 0 E
In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has formulated a defined REEREEERR $§%E%Uiﬁﬁ T
fixed credit policy and delegated a team responsible for WEEEABRRREZE—HEAE SEE
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring TEERSE MEREERERETEMES
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover B URREREEARIER 2B
overdue debts. The Group's retail sales are mainly on cash basis, EH - AKECTEHETERRGHE
either in cash, debit card or third-party payment platform. The £ PBRe BEFRIE=ZFNRTEE
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon 17 AEBRIERBT BB ELERIFEIR
application of HKFRS 9 on trade receivable and lease receivables & REEHEEBHEENX  HERBKERERX
balances individually or based on provision matrix. K2 18 B P W RROE 45 R 8 BIE TR E BT A
Sk DA R B R R BT T R E AT 14 o
For the credit-impaired trade receivables and lease receivables, a ?fﬁﬁ,lfﬁfﬁr”ﬁgﬁﬁﬁfﬁfffqﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
impairment loss of RMB6,491,000 (2022: a impairment loss of CEREE_E-_=%+_-A=1+—H
RMB2,162,000) was made during the year ended 31 December 2023. Jtif;f/ﬁﬂj AR #6,491,0007T 2 J (B &8
The following table shows the movement in loss allowance that has (Z2==F : ARME2,162,0007T 2 BB E
been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified 18) - —F%iﬁ‘ﬁfﬁﬁi‘«?ﬁfbﬁiﬁfb JFEUBR R
approach. Rz IBEREY
Life-time ECL
(credit impaired)
EHEBEERE
(BEEERE)
RMB'000
ARETTT
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—F—H—H 495
— change in expected credit losses — EHEEEEEZS 2,162
As at 31 December 2022 RN_ZE-_—+_-_A=+—H 2,657
— change in expected credit losses —EHEEEEY 6,491
As at 31 December 2023 R-_E-_=F+-_A=+—H 9,148
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FRPEREARRAF

Financial instruments (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group assessed the 12-month ECL for other
receivables individually as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 and
considered that impairment allowance on other receivables (not
credit impaired) to be insignificant and thus negligible to be
provided by the Group based on the low probability of default on
those counterparties based on historical credit loss experience. The
management has also assessed all available forward looking
information, including but not limited to the economic outlook of
the PRC and subsequent settlement of the debtors, and concluded
that the credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other
receivables is insignificant.

Time deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with credit ratings of B or above assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, the Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance
for credit losses is provided.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

Amounts due from an associate

Management consider they do not have significant credit risk due to
the past payment history and also taking into account of the sound
financial performance and position of their holding companies/
significant shareholders to meet contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. No impairment had been provided under 12-month
expected credit loss assessment.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. Details of bank borrowings are set out in note 27.

—E-=FEH
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£@IA (&)
SWMT AL ()

=B R R B ()

H 1 JEW 5 E
EAAEEEERRERE Y —BH A&
EERERE BV ISHREERFEIHE - R
BEBAEEEBENXETRENE - A&
BYHR T =FR_FT-__F+=A
—t+—BZzHMEWEE - @RI E 1218
ATEMEEEE  URARMBIKIE (I
F|EERE) ZRERBITEKN - HE
RELEEBELER  ZEHFHENT
BEMTAR AAEEBEBHEES
BYTEKX -EBENCTFEMBASBSZ
AIBEMER - BIEETRNA P H 2 4571
SOUREBEBAREBZEN  URAEE
EREEzEMERZIEES ZEERR
WAERK -

TFRFHRIRITAETF

HREF Y AEBRREEFREERT
BRI LEEFR BT MRBHES
Z2EERRBRER BHE_T_ZFK_F
T+ -A=Z+—HLFE A£EY
RITHETFETREN G SRAHFAIR
TEAMAIEETA AT ERHER
BB -

AR ER B FE UK R AR K B R UK IRDR B B
REFEERR  RRIBRBZHFH
REP e

BEERA ARBENNKCE  BTE
BEEZERAR/EERRNBREIBER
IR WEL EEAEERBRIARRE
HABTENRSREEE - HIERE 2
AR EEE R R ERE -

mBELEE

REBRBESRARE AEEERLHE
FEEERARNEBNAEEXBHTEE
EKRFZRERREEFEBY  WHERSE
MERDTE EREERRTEEZE
A BERETEREE -

AEBEKERTEREREENRDES
KR - RITEEFIBEHNME27 -
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 36 €WMIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SR T RER (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELERE (&)
Based on the above, the management of the Company considers ER b RRRERER AL EL &
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk and it will be ERMERRBES AR  WHEMNEITE
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the R ERMARRE BN BEEE -
foreseeable future.
In addition, the following table details the Group's remaining BN TRANAEBIETESRBER
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The TEHEHE - TRIVERAEETEH
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash ERBR2HFAE  NemBaE IR
flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on which the RIS MEAERY - TREHIIFEK
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and reREME :
principal cash flows:
Weighted
average On demand/ Total
effective less than 1to 3 months to 1to Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1month 3 months 1year 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
nETY  BRER/ FEBRS
ERAE -@EEMR -Z=fA Z@RE-% -Z1f BRAF RELR REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARMTR ARMTR AR¥TR ARETR ARMTR ARET:R
31 December 2023 ZE-=4+ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiEeREE
Trade and other payables JERTERF R E M RFIR - 952419 - - - — 952419 952419
Amount due to a non-controlling JERHE 2 R — B I ERER
shareholder of subsidiaries A - 26,142 - - - - 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate RITEE —FBHE 3.70-3.80 - 30,238 130,531 836,736 3,391,025 4,388,530 3,278,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER-HAECERE - 37,640 - - - - 37,640 37,640
Lease liabilities HERE 4.30 9,182 18,365 82,640 409,675 1,127,175 1,647,037 1,611,870
1,025,383 48,603 21311 1,246,411 4518200 7,051,768 5,906,071
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than Tto  3monthsto Tto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5years cash flows amount
METH RER/ FERRE
ERME  —EAMA —-Z=fAR Z@EARE-% —E0F e REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AREFT ARETR ARETT ARETR
31 December 2022 “F--f+-fA=1+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITEERER
Trade and other payables MRS Rt B3R - 1,094,618 - - - 1,094,618 1,094,618
Amount due to a non-controlling ERMEAR-BFERRERL
shareholder of subsidiaries HB — 26,142 — — — 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate BEE — 2% 4.31-4.41 — 24,358 43,032 2,296,158 2,363,548 2,240,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER—HAaELERE — 12,580 — — — 12,580 12,580
Lease liabilities HEBRE 4.90 9,557 19113 86,009 86,009 200,683 188,407
1,142,897 43,471 129,041 2,382,167 3,697,576 3,561,747
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 36
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(a)  Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

£@IA (&)
SWMT AL ()

FBE A ()

13 B0 ) S 12 Y 1A 4R 2 B SR T 2 )R
BEAR XIS MBI
FETABEZSETEHBES -

ERMITAZATVEFE

(a) RFEER
TRAEEENITRAFEINRZ
TR EFEOMWT

. HREEXREZERT SR
B(RERAE)(E—F) -

. BHREGIAE &) &
EXBEZERIMEAIHR
BWARE (B -

. WIFRIE R BR T IS BUREE
ZEESABEHARE (BT

(level 3). AR AR (E=R) °
Financial Assets Fair values as at December 31 Fair value hierarchy
SREE R+=ZA=+—BZA¥E DNEEER
Structured bank deposits 2023: RMB580,800,000 (2022: Nil) Level 2
M IRITER —ET =% : AR¥580,8000007T F#&

(ZE==F + §\)

(b)  Valuation techniques used to determine fair value
The fair values of structured bank deposits are determined by
valuation techniques that use observable inputs such as the
exchange rate, stock index and commodity prices that are
observable at commonly quoted intervals.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

(b) EERFEIALEERM
EBURTERORAFETERA
BERE SR (WEX - REEEK
BmER) MEERNEE - %258
ABER - RRERFETEER -
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37 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 37 HEEEHELNEEYHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRV AEERERETDELENEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 pERCNERCET REFH
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EENBEEREEIBEASEEGER S
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the Group's RERPOHEAREZHZRERE -
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.
Amount due to a
non-controlling
Bank Interest Lease shareholder of
borrowings payables liabilities subsidiaries Total
FEAS KB 2 R
RITEE EAFS HERE FERRRZE “sHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTFT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 RZZZ—F—HF—H 2,340,000 3,178 288,928 26,142 2,658,248
Interest on bank borrowing RITEERS — 101,495 — — 101,495
Interests on lease liability HEARBHS — — 14,158 — 14,158
Financing cash outflow METHRERN (100,000 (101,733) (114,679) — (316,412
At 31 December 2022 i ——s
+ZA=+—H 2,240,000 2,940 188,407 26,142 2,457,489
At 1 January 2023 RZZ-Z=F—HF—H 2,240,000 2,940 188,407 26,142 2,457,489
Interest on bank borrowing RITEEFS — 124,240 — — 124,240
Interests on lease liability HEABEHE — — 57,698 — 57,698
Addition NE 3,300,000 — 1,481,589 — 4,781,589
Financing cash outflow RMEADBRE AL (2,262,000) (123,324) (115,824) — (2,501,148)
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=%F
+=ZA=+—H 3,278,000 3,856 1,611,870 26,142 4,919,868
38 Pledge of assets 38 EE?&#
As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant RZZZ=F+A=+—0 K&EEE
and equipment in the PRC with a book value of approximately EREETOLRFEZYE - BE &K
RMB3,631 million (2022: property, plant and equipment and # BREBENRARKIIEST(Z
investment property in the PRC of RMB3,786 million and RMB1,262 o F PP ME - BE REE
million respectively) and (ii) right-of-use assets in the PRC with a INRIBREMES R BAREIT86BE TR
book value of approximately RMB1,569 million (2022: RMB1,620 AR, 2628 E7T) R B 2 6
million) were pledged to secure bank loan facilities of approximately EEE RHEBENAARE1560BET
RMB3,300 million (2022: RMB2,240 million). (=% __E AR¥1,620887T) E R
RIETERMENARKEI00AST (=
2::& P ANRE2240887T) ©
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39 Related party disclosure 39 BEALIHEE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial ﬁ? NGNS E S ) T)iéagfﬂ\ NS
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related BHREAN T HETA TR
parties:
(a) Transactions (a) X%
During the year, the Group had entered into the following FRN - AREEETHIREALET
significant transactions with the following related parties. THNERRS °
2023 2022
—E-= —_=F =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETTT

Nature of related party transactions: ~ BEA TR SWMHE :
Variable lease payment expenses and I T —Ha&RFE 2 A&7l

management fee to a joint venture ENFAIREERE 76,328 51,061
Repayment of lease liabilities to a m—fHaErXEEREAE
joint venture (including principal (BHEAS RMEEH)
and interest elements) 115,824 114,679
Rental expenses and management fee RE —HEE A RIMNEESHEZ
from an associate KEEBE 6,295 4,120
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b)y ETEEBASHMH
The remuneration of the executive directors, being the key $ﬂff§$f’ﬁﬁ$£”f§/\§iz%ﬁm
management personnel, was determined by the remuneration EHARBFME S S REEARN
committee of the Company having regard to the performance ?ﬁi%i'%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ?%m o FL X B[R] B
of the individuals and market. Details of which together with MAE(ZEZZ_F  HB) K= FHE
the other two (2022: four) highest paid employees are BrHBER LM -
disclosed in note 11 above.
40 Retirement benefits schemes 40 RIKBEFIGHE
Hong Kong BB
The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under REBESEgH R ESE ([BESE
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). Both the JJ)T?AE#?&HEU K’ilﬁé\lﬁu
Group and the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant BI5%BEASRETEIHR - BERES
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 %ol BRAE R AR LR 2%30,000/’15375 o
for the MPF ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to 1BE AR W AH SR AT R VR DRUAER A5 2R 4F J e A 4
reduce the contribution payable in the future years. Koo
PRC H
The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state- AEEEFENEIHEHEAEEE
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective [ 79 AR A 3 5 IRT S8 Ve R B K B TR AR IR AR
local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is required to FIETEIOKE - REEERBEIHRIE
contribute and recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to ABMIEEB DL B EINEB B BR
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group o REEELHEE—NEERIED
with respect to these schemes are to make the specified HBERRI R RB T BTSN GERTE
contributions and recognise the respective retirement pay in BAEEEERMNERZEERAKIE -

accordance with terms set out in the schemes and relevant
jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above ﬁﬁ\?ﬁﬁaitmﬁiuq:‘ﬁj\ﬁmﬂ’%@ﬁ$
mentioned schemes during the year amounted to approximately BRARARE212BET(ZE =
RMB21.2 million (2022: RMB19.0 million). ARB1908ET) -
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41 FENBATFE
KRB —FR-FE-_—F+-A=+—
B AAFZEFEMBAREEHT -

41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

MEARN—RER

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a)

Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Attributable

Name of company establishment and operation registered capital equity interest of the Group Principal activities
ERRL/BIR
ARER E54%/RE BRARER/ERRE AREELRER IBEK
2023 022 2023 2022
-§-= CECCE tBozf I
Ample Sun Group Limited ("Ample Sun”) Hong Kong HK$62,050,000 HKS$62,050,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
17 August 2007
HEREBERAT(ER]) £ 62,050,000 7 62050000770 RARK
ZIRHENATLEE
Lifestyle Plaza (Dalian) Co,, Limited**' PRC US$45,000,000 US§45,000,000 100% 100%  Dormant
9 October 1993
MEBE (RE) ARAR™ HE 45,000,000% 7 45,000 000% 72 %
—MZETANR
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co., Limited™ PRC RMB1,071,072,800 RMB1,055,696,400 100% 100%  Retaling business
1 March 2007
FERS @) ARAR™ hE ARH ARE 2EEK
S | 1,071,072,8007 1,055,696, 4007
LiYi Da Commercial and Real Estate (Shangha) PRC ~ PRC RMBS3,096,849,779 RMB2,989,331,164 100% 100%  Retaling business and
Company Limited**" 23 April 2012 property development
MeEBE£EE (L8 ERAA HE ARH ARH SEEBRNEER
“F-2EmAZTZR 3,096,849,7797 2989,331,16470
Shanghai Li Hai Chao Commercial Company PRC RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retaling business
Limited**' 31 March 2012
LEHBREZERRA Gk ARH15,000000% [ AEF150000007T TEEK
ZF-ZF=f=1-A
Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited* PRC U5$12,000,000 1S§12,000000 65% 5%  Retailing business
("Shanghai Ongoing’) 26 July 2004
LEARBEERAT ([ LEAR)) hE 12,000,000 7 12000000570 TEER
“REMELACTRA
Shenyang Chuk Yuen Company Limited**” PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100%  Dormant
1 December 2006
AREEELARRA HE AR® ARH %
ZE5RETZA-H 710,090,392 71009039271
Wingold Limited ("Wingold") Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
20 April 2007
EeERAR () (33 10,0007 10,0007 REER
ZETtEmA-TA

* RPBRZI 2P ERE -

a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

. *x KPP BRIz 2N ERE -

wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

The English name is translated for identification purpose only " ENEBER/DE - EHHT

B 65 R - BRI 2 A
K ERERES -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of both reporting periods.
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

41 FEMBEQEFE (E)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) HMEBLAAN—RER (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, P RINHESZRAEEZER
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or SEEXBENEECARANMER
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries Al BEERA - REHMMELRE
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of HeE8YFBBE -
excessive length.
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENES
material non-controlling interests ARINFE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEEEARFIERERHAE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling ESEF2EMBRRNE
interests:
Proportion of ownership interest
Name of Place of incorporation and and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
company principal place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
A 3L 3t B R FERER2HERE
ARER TEEEHY RARRERELH BT FERERHEF Rt FERER
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—B-=f e Sat3 —E-=F bt e 3 —E-= —g--
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT ARBT T ARBTFT
Wingold Hong Kong 40% 40% 108,266 62,440 1,240,111 1,131,845
e BB
Shanghai PRC 35% 35% 65,368 58,684 119,583 112,110
Ongoing
HBAK g
Ample Sun Hong Kong 40% 40% 14,148 9,890 258,264 244,116
=3z ) 0
187,782 131,014 1,617,958 1,488,071

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H

BRAEEHBEEAIFERER
MEBARHHERREZHIIT -
NTHINzHBENHEREER
RA|EEHERTHESER
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41 FEWERAFE (&)

150

(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEERFERERNIZEMNES
material non-controlling interests (continued) AT WS ()
(i)  Wingold (i) #=£
2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Current assets MEEE 204,373 197,118
Non-current assets ERBNE E 2,926,820 2,663,409
Current liabilities nBBE 4,873 4,873
Non-current liabilities EmEaE 26,042 26,042
Equity attributable to owners of ~ RA G #EH AEIREZS
the Company 1,860,167 1,697,767
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 1,240,111 1,131,845
Income WA 270,670 156,105
Expenses 53 6 4
Profit and total comprehensive REE &M R 2K
income for the year e 270,664 156,101
Profit and total comprehensive RRBIHEE ANEE RN &
income attributable to owners FTHE AT
of the Company 162,398 93,661
Profit and total comprehensive FE5E IR %5 FE A5 e ) 2
income attributable to the THEHLAE
non-controlling interests 108,266 62,440
Profit and total comprehensive NS R R 2 TE W
income for the year Gk 270,664 156,101
Net cash inflow from operating KETEMEENES
activities MAHER — —
Net cash inflow from investing SEEEEEMNER S
activities mMAEER — —
Net cash outflow from financing ~ & EBTELENR S
activities R — —
Net cash outflow Wt F5E — —
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41 FEME R AFE (&)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENES
material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIM S (E)
(i)  Shanghai Ongoing (i) LERE
2023 2022
—E-Z=HF — T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARBFT
Current assets MEEE 855,808 709,665
Non-current assets IEMBNVE B 2,456,178 200,685
Current liabilities mEBE 614,507 504,028
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,355,811 86,008
Equity attributable to owners of AR B A AR
the Company 222,085 208,204
Non-controlling interests JEVE R AE 119,583 112,110
Income WA 871,336 710,916
Expenses 53 684,570 543,247
Profit and total comprehensive REERMNE2E N
income for the year e 186,766 167,669
Profit and total comprehensive RAREA NEERT R
income attributable to owners 2EKE=LREE
of the Company 121,398 108,985
Profit and total comprehensive FE1E PR 2 A5 s ) K2
income attributable to the eyt
non-controlling interests 65,368 58,684
Profit and total comprehensive RNEE A K2 E RS
income for the year ) 186,766 167,669
Net cash inflow from operating KEEBMEENE S
activities AR 115,194 105,740
Net cash inflow from investing KRELREENEE
activities MAHRR 16,555 14,124
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from MEEREAEANR S
financing activities WA G 58 15,140 (352,840)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) RenrA/ (nd) F8E 146,889 (232,976)

FRPEREARRAF

—E-=FEH
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41 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41 FEWERAFE (&)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) BEERFERERNIZEMNES

152

material non-controlling interests (continued) AT WS ()
(i) Ample Sun (i) #= R
2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
Current assets MENE E 7,459 7,467
Non-current assets ERBNE E 642,212 604,619
Current liabilities VEAR=NE 4,006 1,796
Equity attributable to owners of RARHEE AEEER
the Company 387,401 366,174
Non-controlling interests IR IE = 258,264 244,116
Income A 37,597 26,417
Expenses 53 2,228 1,692
Profit and total comprehensive NEFE ) N 2 T W s
income for the year M 35,369 24,725
Profit and total comprehensive RRTEB AEE R R
income attributable to owners 2HE W A5
of the Company 21,221 14,835
Profit and total comprehensive FE 2 P e e FE A R 1 S
income attributable to the THKERRE
non-controlling interests 14,148 9,890
Profit and total comprehensive R F N 2 T W A
income for the year RG] 35,369 24,725
Net cash inflow from operating KEEEMEANR S
activities MAEER 6 26
Net cash inflow from investing RETHMELNR S
activities MAHER — —
Net cash inflow from financing REEEMEAMNE S
activities mMAEER — —
Net cash inflow WemAFHE 6 26
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42 Statement of financial position and reserves of 42 FATHMBRRKKFEE
the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RERER - ARRUBARARER B
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EF -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN ERNGIE E 6,800,649 6,863,406
Amounts due from a subsidiary JE s — FRFfY 88 & B 3KIE
(note a) (Ff¥zEa) - 248,496
6,800,649 7,111,902
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H e U FkIE 299 257
Amounts due from a subsidiary JE g — FRIFfY B8 & B 3KIA
(note a and b) (Mf5Takeb) 278,181 48,697
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEFEY 1,218 4,167
279,698 53,121
Current liabilities mBEE
Other payables H i JE < 5B 22,166 12,416
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) FEASTBY /B A B ZR B (i 3Ec) 291,246 370,288
Tax payable JE# 1A 577 663
313,989 383,367
Net current liabilities wmEBEFE (34,291) (330,246)
6,766,358 6,781,656
Capital and reserves ERRFEE
Share capital [N 6,291 6,291
Reserves (note d) f# i (M EEd) 6,760,067 6,775,365
6,766,358 6,781,656
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42

154

Statement of financial position and reserves of
the Company (continued)

42 AR FMBRR KRR FHE ()

Movement of the equity of the Company is as follows: RABIMERZEB T
Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits Total
B 1% 8 EotEE REE % F At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBTRE AREFT ARBTE
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_#—H—H 6,543,132 480 230,757 6,774,369
Profit and total comprehensive  ZN G [ & K & 2 U ES
income for the year R — — 996 996
At 31 December 2022 RZZB-_—F+=-A
=+—H 6,543,132 480 231,753 6,775,365
Loss and total comprehensive ANFEEE K2 N
expenses for the year Rk — — (15,298) (15,298)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZTE-_=%F+=-AH
=+—H 6,543,132 480 216,455 6,760,067

Notes: B 5T -

(a) The amounts due from a subsidiary included amount of RMB78,000,000 (a) JE AT B A R FRIB B 4E A R #78,000,0007T
(2022: RMB78,000,000) and RMB172,968,000 (2022: RMB170,496,000), which (ZZ == AR¥78,000,0007T) Z AR
were unsecured, carried fixed interest of 3.50% (2022: 3.85%) and 3.50% #172,968,000c (ZZ = =F : AR¥
(2022: 4.3%) per annum, and repayable in March 2024 and June 2024 170,496,0007T) * ¥ EIEA - o BILAE E F
respectively. FIFEIS0E (=T = =4 : 385/F) k350E

(ZEZZF 43E) A8 UFDHIN=-F
TME=ZAR-ZE-_MESAEE -

(b) The amount due from a subsidiary was unsecured, non-interest bearing and (b) FEUR —FEIFT BB A R R IE AR - BB RA
repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting period. RIEHRET —EARER -

() The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and (o) EAHMBARZFBAEERT 2ERERE
repayable on demand. RIS EE -

(d) The Company'’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 December 2023 (d) RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H ' AR"AH#

consisted of share premium, merger reserve and retained profits of
RMB6,760,067,000 (2022: RMB6,775,365,000).

DIRHEBEBERDEE  AHEERREE
AR #6,760,067,0007C (= F = — 4 :
AR 6,775,365,0007T)
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEETERE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

HE+_A=T—HILFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC-=E —ZE-C —E-— —E-EF —E-hE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT AREFL AREFL AREFL
Revenue WA 1,348,975 1,127,588 1,299,736 1,124,020 1,204,057
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners AREHRE AN
of the Company i/ (BE) 87,767 (24,441) 143,393 212,748 (83,516)
Earnings/(losses) per share (RMB) GREMN,/(HB)(ARY)
— Basic —HK 0.060 (0.017) 0.098 0.145 (0.057)
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+—-A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=E —E-- —E-—F kS 3 “E-N0F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Total assets BELE 17,036,933 14,448,660 15,032,372 14,589,901 14,424,611
Total liabilities BlEEE 6,020,395 3,649,796 4252026 4,058,202 4.174,702
Net assets BEFE 11,016,538 10,798 864 10,780,346 10,531,699 10,249,909
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,617,958 1,488,071 1,445,289 1,340,336 1,271,151
Net assets attributable to owners ARREE NERL
of the Company BEHE 9,398,580 9,310,793 9,335,057 9,191,363 8,978,758
Net assets per share (RMB) FREEFE(ARY) 7.52 7.37 7.36 7.19 7.00
Net assets per share attributable to FRAHE AEGER
owners of the Company (RMB) EEFE(ARE) 6.42 6.36 637 6.28 613
Number of shares issued BETRHHE 1,464,448500 | 1464448500 1464448500 1464448500  1,464,448500

FIEPERERRLAT —Z-=5F%H
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Particulars of Major Property

ETEMEFR

Gross floor area Attributable
(ground and interest to the
Address above) Existing use Group Lease term
BEREEE RE
bt (MER L) BEEAR iR HEFH
sg.m.
7R
Investment property No. 1-2, Lane 2218, 78,987 Office leasing 100% Medium

Gonghexin Road,
Jing'an District,
Shanghai, PRC
wEME PR EETRRRE o 7 8%
FEFNH 3% 22185 1-255%

>
i

o
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L1fest le China Group Limited
Fl f8 b B4 AR A

Lifestyle China Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ANEFERESRATF
(RBIS RS MR BRAT)
BB e E5555
RATL201E

Tel E5E: (852) 2833 8338

Fax{&E&: (852) 2838 2030

Email 3: info@lifestylechina.com.hk
www.lifestylechina.com.hk
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